
Please ask for Shelley French: Telephone 01775 764451 
e-mail: sfrench@sholland.gov.uk

AGENDA

Committee - COMMITTEE OF THE LICENSING 
AUTHORITY

Date & Time - Thursday, 26 November 2015 at 6.35 pm or 
immediately following the conclusion of the
Licensing Committee whichever is the later

Venue - Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding

Membership of the Committee of the Licensing Authority:

Councillors: F Biggadike, T A Carter, A Casson, M G Chandler, R Clark (Vice-Chairman), 
G K Dark, A Harrison (Chairman), J L King, C J Lawton and J Tyrrell

Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn mobile telephones to silent 

mode

Democratic Services
Council Offices, Priory Road
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE

Date:   18 November 2015



A G E N D A

1. Apologies for absence.

2. Declaration of interests:

(Councillors are reminded that under the Code of Conduct they are not 
to participate in the whole of an agenda item to which they have a 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest.  In the interests of transparency, 
councillors may also wish to declare any other interests that they have, 
in relation to an agenda item, that supports the Nolan principles detailed 
within the Code of Conduct.)

3. Minutes:

To approve the minutes of the Committee of the Licensing Authority held 
on 8 July 2015. (copy enclosed).  

(Pages 
1 - 2)

4. Revised Statement of Licensing Policy (Licensing Act 2003):

Consideration of draft revised Statement of Licensing Policy and refer 
the final approved Policy to Full Council for adoption ( Report of the 
Executive Manager Public Protection is enclosed). 

(Pages 
3 - 52)

5. Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent:

NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by reason of special 
circumstances, which shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) should be 
considered as a matter of urgency.  



- 4 -

Minutes of a meeting of the COMMITTEE OF THE LICENSING AUTHORITY held in 
the Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Wednesday, 8 July 
2015 at 6.35 pm.

PRESENT

A Harrison (Chairman)
R Clark (Vice-Chairman)

F Biggadike
T A Carter
M G Chandler

P E Coupland
J L King
C J Lawton

J Tyrrell

In Attendance:  Councillors  , Democratic Services Support Officer and Food Health & 
Safety Manager

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors G K Dark 

Action By
4. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

There were none.  

5. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meetings held on 12 March 2015 and 20 May 
2015 were approved as a correct record subject to the following 
amendment:

 20 May 2015 – to delete reference to Councillor A  Casson 
in the Panel Matrix and replace with Councillor T Carter.  

6. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT. 

Cumulative Impact Zone

The Chairman invited Councillor Chandler, Committee member of 
Portfolio Holder with responsibility for Licensing to talk about work 
which was taking place to look at making certain areas within 
Spalding becoming a Cumulative Impact Zone.  

Councillor Chandler advised that officers of the Council had been 
instructed to investigate the possibility of making Spalding a 
Cumulative Impact Zone. A Cumulative Impact Zone  referred to 
the detrimental effect on the promotion of the licensing objectives 
caused when a significant number of licensed premises were 
concentrated in one area. This could have had impact on crime 
and disorder or public nuisance in that area.  A Cumulative Impact 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3.



- 5 -

COMMITTEE OF THE LICENSING 
AUTHORITY - 8 July 2015

Policy creates a rebuttable presumption that any new application 
for a premises licence or variation within a specific area will 
normally be refused.  

Currently certain areas within Spalding Town Centre were 
covered by a PSPO (Public Spaces Protection Order) which was 
due to expire in October 2017, it was hoped that a Cumulative 
Impact Zone would be in place prior to the PSPOs expiration.  

Councillor Chandler explained that the MP for South Holland and 
the Deepings, Rt Hon John Hayes MP was fully in support of the 
proposal, and that there had been some success in other areas of 
the country such as Wisbech, Brighton and Cambridge.  

It was hoped that the introduction of a Cumulative Impact Zone 
would give councillors and officers of the authority the power to 
object and refuse applications, limit or refuse extension of trading 
hours etc. to licensed premises within the named area.  It would 
have an impact on all licensable activity including, gambling, early 
morning restriction orders and food.  

The Communities Team had already completed some work during 
2013 looking at the area of which it should cover.

The Chairman asked that Councillor Chandler keep the 
Committee briefed and they would lend their support as and when 
necessary. 

(The meeting ended at 7.27 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 2



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Phil Adams - Executive Public Protection Manager

To: Committee of the Licensing Authority – 26 November 2015

Author: Tiffany Bentley – Interim Licensing & Business Support Manager

Subject: Revised Statement of Licensing Policy (Licensing Act 2003)

Purpose: Consideration of draft revised Statement of Licensing Policy and refer the 
final approved Policy to Full Council for adoption

Recommendation: 

1) That in order for South Holland District Council as the licensing authority to discharge its 
statutory duties under the Licensing Act 2003, the Licensing Committee and then Full Council 
approve the revised Statement of Licensing Policy.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1      On 24th November 2005, South Holland District Council became the Licensing Authority 
under the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 for the retail sale of alcohol, the supply of 
alcohol by or on behalf of a club, the provision of regulated entertainment and the provision 
of late night refreshment within the South Holland district. 

1.2       Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 requires South Holland District  Council, as a Licensing 
            Authority, to prepare and publish a statement of its Licensing Policy at least every five  
            years. This policy must also be kept under review and the Licensing Authority may make 
            such revisions to it as it considers appropriate. The current Statement of Licensing Policy 
            came into force on 7th January 2011 and is attached at Appendix A. 

1.3 In order to comply with the legislative requirements the current Statement of Licensing 
            Policy must be reviewed, revised and published by 7th January 2016. The Interim 
            Licensing & Business Support Manager has completed a review of the current statement of 
            Licensing Policy which had not been amended since 7th January 2011. The revised draft 
            does not change alter the approach to making decisions from that which is already in place. 
            The revision takes into account various legislative changes which have occurred since the 
            previous revision. The proposed draft revised Statement of Licensing Policy is attached at 
            Appendix B.

1.4       The revised statement of Licensing Policy seeks to provide guidance to applicants and 
other persons on the general approach that South Holland District Council will take in 
terms of determining all licences under the Licensing Act 2003 with the overriding aim of 
promoting the four licensing objectives;

 The prevention of crime and disorder

 Public Safety

 The Prevention of Public Nuisance

 The Protection of Children from Harm

1.5       As part of this process the draft revised statement must be consulted on before its adoption 
by Council. Section 5(3) of the Licensing Act 2003 prescribes a list of those persons that 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4.



the licensing authority must consult with. Those are:

              a) the Chief Constable for Lincolnshire Police;

              b) the Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue Service;

              c) persons/bodies representative of local holders of premises licences;

              d) persons/bodies representative of local holders of club premises certificates; 

              e) persons/bodies representative of local holders of personal licences;

              f)  persons/bodies representative of businesses and residents in the area; and

              g) Director of Public Health, Lincolnshire County Council.

             Beyond these statutory requirements it is for each licensing authority to decide the full 
extent of its consultations and whether any particular person or body is representative of 
the group described in the statute. 

1.6     The draft revised Statement of Licensing Policy was under consultation from 5th October      
          2015 to 1st November 2015 after approval from the Chair of the Licensing Committee. 
          The consultation was carried out in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003, using email 
           where possible and a list of those consulted is attached at Appendix C.  

1.7     The draft statement was also placed on the Council’s website. No responses were received. 

1.8     In addition, members are asked to note that in October 2015 the Home Office issued 
          guidance on the deregulation of the licensable activity of late night refreshment. Regulations   
          were also released allowing licensing authorities to exempt supplies of late night refreshment 
          on / from premises in a designated area, on / from premises of a designated description or 
           during a designated period. The regulations came into force on 5th November 2015. Links to 
           the regulations and guidance can be found in the Background Papers section of this report.

1.9     A decision to make an exemption for late night refreshment is one that would require 
          inclusion in the statement of Licensing Policy and be subject to the statutory consultation 
          process. To clarify, this has not been consulted upon due to the timescale of the release of  
          the regulations and guidance. If members are minded to have such a special policy it would 
          need separate consideration and consultation. Any decision to deregulate late night 
          refreshment must be based on the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 The options for the Licensing Committee are limited as the process is legislative and dictated 
        by the Licensing Act 2003. The Council has no discretion as to making the statement of 
        Licensing Policy, although there is some discretion as to the content of the statement.
 
2.2 The Licensing Committee may:-

i) consider the draft revised statement of Licensing Policy and approve it; and
ii) refer the statement of Licensing Policy to Full Council for adoption or
iii) do nothing

2.3 Members are also asked to note the developments in relation to late night refreshment  
       deregulation and to consider if further work in this area is necessary.

Page 4



3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1 To ensure South Holland District Council acting as the Licensing Authority can discharge its 
statutory duties under the Licensing Act 2003.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 Statutory compliance

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues

5.1.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.2 Constitution & Legal

5.2.1 If the Authority does not produce a revised statement of policy and related procedures 
within the statutory timescale, there is a risk that the Authority will not be in a position to 
process applications, leaving the Authority open to challenge by persons wishing to make 
such applications. Furthermore, the Authority will also have failed to comply with its legal 
obligations under the Act and could face challenge.

5.3 Contracts

5.3.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.4 Corporate Priorities

5.4.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.5 Crime and Disorder 

5.5.1    Lincolnshire Police were consulted as Responsible Authorities under the Licensing Act 
            2003 but made no comment on the report.

5.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

5.6.1 These are considered within the report.

5.7 Financial 

5.7.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.8 Health & Wellbeing

5.8.1    It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.9 Risk Management 

5.2.2 If the Authority does not produce a revised statement of policy and related procedures 
within the statutory timescale, there is a risk that the Authority will not be in a position to 

Page 5



process applications, leaving the Authority open to challenge by persons wishing to make 
such applications. Furthermore, the Authority will also have failed to comply with its legal 
obligations under the Act and could face challenge.

5.10 Safeguarding

5.10.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.11 Staffing

5.11.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.12 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

5.12.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 All.

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 None

Background papers:-

The Licensing Act 2003 (Late Night Refreshment) Regulations 2015: 

www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/1781/pdfs/uksi_20151781_en.pdf

Home Office Guidance on the licensing of late night refreshment:

www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/464869/Guidance_on_the_l
icensing_of_late_night_refreshment.pdf

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Tiffany Bentley – Interim Licensing & Business Support Manager
Telephone Number: (01362) 656371
Email: tiffany.bentley@breckland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No 

Exempt Decision: No 

This report refers to a Mandatory Service

Appendices attached to this report: 
Appendix A Current Licensing Policy
Appendix B Draft revised Licensing Policy
Appendix C List of consultees

Page 6

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/1781/pdfs/uksi_20151781_en.pdf
http://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/464869/Guidance_on_the_licensing_of_late_night_refreshment.pdf
http://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/464869/Guidance_on_the_licensing_of_late_night_refreshment.pdf


    1

South Holland District Council

Licensing Policy Statement
(Licensing Act 2003 only)

November 2010 Licensing Team

retail sale of alcohol
supply of alcohol to club

members provision
of regulated

entertainment
prevention of crime

and disorder
performance of a play

exhibition of a film indoor
sporting event boxing

or wrestling public
safety entertainment
performance of live

music playing of
recorded music

performance of dance
prevention of public
nuisance provision of

facilities for making music
protection of children

from harm provision of
facilities for dancing
provision of late night

refreshment 

Page 7

tbentley
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX A - CURRENT POLICY

tbentley_1
Typewritten Text



        2

South Holland DIstrict Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only)

Contents

Policy Aim 

1. Introduction

2. Integrated Strategies and the Avoidance of Duplication

3. The Licensing Process

4. Licensing Hours

5. Licensing Objectives

6. Cumulative Impact

7. Live Music Events in “Small Premises” Nudity and Striptease

8. Conditions of Licence

9.  Advice and Guidance 

10.  Enforcement

11. Review

12. Consultation 

13. Monitoring

14. Policy Approval

15. Related Policies and Strategies

Appendix 1 - Delegation of Functions

3

4

6

7

10

10

16

18

18

18

19

19

19

19

19

19

20

Page 8



South Holland DIstrict Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only)

    3

South Holland District Council - Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only)

Replaces Policy

Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003)

Policy Number

0006 (revised)

Policy Aim

The aim of this policy is to make sure that all parties
involved in the licensing of activities covered by the
Licensing Act 2003 understand the policy of the
Council in relation to the four licensing objectives
stated in the Act, namely:

n the prevention of crime and disorder

n public safety

n the prevention of public nuisance

n the protection of children from harm.

Page 9



        4

South Holland DIstrict Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only)

1.0 Introduction

1.1 South Holland District Council is situated
in the county of Lincolnshire, which contains
7 district councils in total. The council area has
a population of 84,100 making it the second
smallest district in the county in terms of
population. South Holland District covers a
geographical area of 74,238 hectares and is
situated in the south eastern corner of
Lincolnshire also boarding the counties of
Cambridgeshire and Norfolk. The District is
mainly rural but comprises of a total of 47
towns and villages including the main town
of Spalding.

1.2 South Holland District Council (herein referred
to as the Licensing Authority) is responsible
for the licensing of all licensable activities
under the Licensing Act 2003 (the Act). This
document sets out the policies and principles
that the Licensing Authority will apply when
making decisions on applications for:

n retail sale of alcohol 

n supply of alcohol to club members

n provision of ‘regulated entertainment’ -
to the public, to club members and/or           
with a view to profit

n a performance of a play

n an exhibition of a film

n an indoor sporting event

n boxing or wrestling entertainment

n a performance of live music

n any playing of recorded music

n a performance of dance

n provision of facilities for making music

n provision of facilities for dancing

n provision of late night refreshment           
(between 11.00pm and 05.00am)

1.3 This policy is intended to provide clarity to
applicants, ‘Interested Parties’ and
‘Responsible Authorities’ on how this
Licensing Authority will determine applications
under the Act.

1.4 Guidance is made available to assist applicants
and can be found on the Council’s website
www.sholland.gov.uk; however the Guidance
does not form part of this Policy.

1.5 The Licensing Authority has a duty under the
Act to carry out its functions with a view to
promoting the 4 licensing objectives. 

These are:

n the prevention of crime and disorder

n public safety

n the prevention of public nuisance

n the protection of children from harm.

1.6 It is recognised that the licensing function is
only one means of securing the delivery of the
above objectives and should not therefore be
seen as a universal solution for solving all
problems within the community. The Licensing
Authority will therefore continue to work in
partnership with its neighbouring authorities,
the responsible authorities, local businesses
and local people towards the promotion of the
objectives as outlined.

1.7 In preparing this Policy Statement the Licensing
Authority has consulted with the following:

n the police

n the fire service

n the Planning authority

n Health and Safety Authorities

n Environmental Health and Pollution

n Trading Standards

n Lincolnshire Child Protection Board

n Navigation Authorities

n representatives of licence and club 
premises certificate holders

n local businesses and their representatives

n local residents and their representatives

n the body responsible for child protection

n other relevant bodies.

1.8 Appropriate weight has been given to the
views of all those consulted prior to this policy
statement taking effect.

Page 10



South Holland DIstrict Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only)

    5

1.9 The purpose of licensing is to control
licensable activities and authorisations within
the terms of the Act. Conditions are likely to be
attached to licenses and the various other
permissions which will focus on matters falling
within the control of individual licence holders.

1.10 These conditions will relate to the premises
and other places being used for licensable
activities and the impact of those activities in
the vicinity. In this regard the Licensing
Authority will primarily focus on the direct
impact of any activities taking place on those
living, working   or otherwise engaged in the
area concerned.

1.11 Vicinity has not been given a defined
perimeter and may vary in distance away from
the premises dependant on the nature of the
area. Certain considerations may be taken into
account in assessing “in the vicinity”.
These may include but are not limited to:

n the nature of the licensable activity;

n the nature and locality of the premises;

n the time of day of the proposed licensable 
activity; and

n the frequency of the activity

1.12 Where the responsible authorities and
interested parties do not raise any
representations about the application made to
the Licensing Authority, it is the duty of the
authority to grant the licence or certificate
subject only to conditions that are consistent
with the operating schedule or club operating
schedule and any mandatory conditions
prescribed in the 2003 Act itself.

1.13 The Licensing Authority may not therefore
impose any conditions unless the applicant
agrees to certain conditions being applied to
the licence where there have been relevant
representations. Where no agreement is
reached then the matter will be heard by the
licensing panel. Conditions will then only be
applied where there are relevant
representations and the panel are satisfied
such conditions are necessary to promote the
licensing objectives arising out of the
consideration of the representations.

1.14 In order to minimise problems and the
necessity for hearings, it would be sensible
for applicants and clubs to consult with
responsible authorities when operating
schedules are being prepared. This would
allow for proper liaison before representations
prove necessary.

1.15 In undertaking its licensing function, the
licensing authority is also bound by other
legislation, including, but not exclusively:

n Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 
1998 - requiring a local Authority to do all 
that it reasonably can to prevent crime and 
disorder in its locality and to consider crime 
and disorder in its decision making process.

n The European Convention on Human 
Rights, which is given effect by the Human 
Rights Act 1998 which places a duty on 
public authorities to protect the rights of 
individuals in a variety of circumstances.

n The Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974
and subsidiary regulations

n Environmental Protection Act 1990

n The Food Safety Act 1990, subsidiary 
regulations and EC Food hygiene 
regulations

n The Anti-social Behaviour Act 2003

n Fire Safety Legislation

n The Legislative and Regulatory                  
Reform Act 2006

n The Regulatory Enforcement and         
Sanctions Act 2008

n The Provision of Services Regulations 2009

1.16 The Council is committed to the
implementation and application of this policy
in such a manner as to ensure that no
applicant or interested party is treated less
favourably on the grounds of sex, marital
status, race, nationality, ethnic or national
origin, colour, disability or age, nor is
disadvantaged by the application of a rule,
condition or requirement, which has a
discriminatory effect which cannot be
justified either in licensing terms or as a
requirement of law.

Page 11



        6

South Holland DIstrict Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only)

1.17 The Licensing Authority will also seek to
discharge its responsibilities identified by
other Government and local strategies, so far
as they impact on the objectives of the
Licensing Act. Some examples of these
strategies and policies are:

n Action Plan for Tackling Alcohol Related 
Crime, Disorder and Nuisance

n Safer clubbing

n LACORS/TSI Code of Best Practice           
on Test Purchasing

n Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy
for England

n Government/ Local Crime and Disorder 
Reduction Partnership Initiatives

n Children and Young People Plan

n Policies from Lincolnshire DAAT

n Enforcement Concordat/ Regulators 
Compliance Code

1.18 It should however be made clear that licensing
law is not the primary mechanism for the
general control of nuisance and anti-social
behaviour by individuals once they are away
from the licensed premises and, therefore,
beyond the direct control of the individual,
club or business holding the licence,
certificate or authorisation concerned.
Nonetheless, it is a key aspect of such control
and licensing law will always be part of a
holistic approach to the management of the
evening and night-time economy in the
district. The Licensing Authority will also
consider the role of other statutory legislation.

2.0 Integrated Strategies and the
Avoidance of Duplication

2.1 It is the Council’s mission ‘to develop and
promote South Holland as a thriving, living
and working rural community’.

2.2 By consulting widely prior to this policy
statement being published the Council has
endeavored to secure proper integration with
local crime prevention, planning, transport,
tourism and cultural strategies.

2.3 There are a number of wider issues which
may need to be given due consideration
when dealing with applications. The Council’s
Licensing Committee may therefore receive
and may act upon relevant reports
concerning:

n planning considerations which might affect 
licensed premises

n crime and disorder

n any other reports considered appropriate to 
the licensing function.

2.4 The Licensing Authority recognises that
licensing applications should not be seen as a
re-run of the planning application process and
that there should be a clear separation of the
planning and licensing regimes to avoid
duplication and inefficiency. However this will
not rule out valid representations made by the
local planning authority as a responsible
authority.

2.5 Applicants are strongly encouraged to
consider making any necessary applications
and enquiries for planning permission before
or at the same time as they make an
application for a premises licence or club
premises certificate.

2.6 All applications relating to premises licences
or club premises certificates will normally only
be considered where the statutory qualifying
conditions are met.

Page 12



South Holland DIstrict Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only)

    7

2.7 In reaching a decision of whether or not to
grant a licence, certificate or provisional
statement, the Licensing Authority may take
account of relevant representations from
responsible authorities or interested parties
and of any non-compliance with other
statutory requirements brought to its attention
in a relevant representation, which may
demonstrate that the premises are unsuitable
for the activities proposed or that the
management of the premises is not adequate
to prevent risks to the licensing objectives.

2.8 In order to avoid duplication with existing
legislation and other statutory regimes, the
Licensing Authority will, as far as possible,
not attach conditions of licence unless they
are considered necessary for the promotion
of the licensing objectives. Conditions will
generally  be considered unnecessary if they
are already adequately covered by other
legislation.

3.0 The Licensing Process

3.1 The powers of the Licensing Authority under
the Act may be carried out by the Licensing
Committee, by a Sub-Committee (Licensing
Panel) or, by one or more officers acting under
delegated authority in accordance with the
provisions of the Act. Delegated powers shall
be in accordance with the table at Appendix 1.

3.2 Each licence application will be considered
on its own merits, for example, free from the
imposition of quotas on the number of
licensed premises or generalised closing
times. Applicants are strongly encouraged to
liaise with all Responsible Authorities, with
respect to their Operating Schedule prior to
submitting their application.

3.3 Applicants will be required to submit with their
application for a premises licence or club
premises certificate, or a variation to an
existing premises licence or club premises
certificate,  an Operating Schedule detailing:

n the licensable activities to be conducted on 
the premises

n the times during which it is proposed that 
the relevant licensable activities are to take 
place

n any other times when the premises are to be
open to the public or to members of a club

n where the licence is required only for a 
limited period, that period

n where the licensable activities include the 
supply of alcohol, the name and address of 
the individual to be specified as the 
designated premises supervisor and his or 
her personal licence number

n where the licensable activities include the 
supply of alcohol, whether the alcohol will 
be supplied for consumption on or off the 
premises or both

n the steps which the applicant proposes to 
take to promote the licensing objectives, 
and

n all relevant documentation necessary to 
satisfy the four licensing objectives.

3.4 Applications will be determined having
regard to:

n this Policy

n the Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) and 
subordinate legislation

n guidance issued by the Department for 
Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS) (the 
Guidance)

n any relevant representations received 
(providing they are not determined to be 
frivolous or vexatious as defined in the Act 
and,associated guidance).

3.5 Whilst representations regarding previous
history may be valid appropriateweight will be
given to the length of time elapsed between
the events referred to and the application date.

Page 13



        8

South Holland DIstrict Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only)

3.6 If an application for a new or a variation to a
premises licence, or club premises certificate
or an application for a provisional statement
has been made lawfully and there have been
no representations from responsible
authorities of interested parties, the licensing
authority will grant the application subject only
to conditions that are consistent with the
operating schedule and relevant
mandatory conditions.

3.7 Applications for minor variations may be
subject to consultations with the appropriate
responsible authorities and will be refused if
any responsible authority indicates that they
would make a representation.

3.8 In an effort to avoid unnecessary hearings,
applicants are strongly advised to prepare risk
assessments and from these formulate any
steps they consider necessary to promote the
licensing objectives and then to consult with
the responsible authorities as defined within
the Act before submitting their applications.
Failure to do so may lead to representations
which can only be determined by the
Licensing Sub-Committee. In respect of minor
variations applicants are strongly advised to
contact the appropriate responsible authorities
before formally submitting their application in
order to avoid unnecessary expense.

3.9 Applicants for any authority or permission are
expected to make their application in
accordance with the Act and any regulations
made thereunder. Failure to meet this
requirement may result in the application
being returned.

3.10 Other than electronic applications applicants
are reminded that documents submitted as
part of an application which bear a signature,
criminal record certificates, criminal conviction
certificates, subject access documents and
licensing qualifications must be original
documents. Faxes and photocopies are not
acceptable unless with prior agreement of the
Licensing Authority.

3.11 If relevant representations have been made,
applications will be determined having
regard to:

n This Policy

n The Licensing Act 2003 and subordinate 
legislation

n Guidance issued by the Department of 
Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS) and the 
Home Office

n The content of any ‘relevant  
representations’ received

3.12 Account will be taken of the need to
encourage and promote all types of
entertainment including live music, dancing
and theatre for the wider cultural benefit of the
community as a whole. If representations are
made concerning the potential for limited
disturbance arising out of these activities in
a particular neighbourhood, the Licensing
Authority’s consideration will be balanced
against the wider benefits to the community.
In its capacity as Licensing Authority, it will
encourage the licensing of public open
spaces for the greater cultural good of the
community, including the purposes of circus
entertainment and street performers.

3.13 The Licensing Authority acknowledges the
advice received from the Department for
Culture, Media and Sport that the views of
vocal minorities should not be allowed to
predominate over the general interest of the
community.

3.14 Temporary Events Notices (TENS)

The Licensing Authority encourages any
applicant applying for a Temporary Event
Notice to obtain the permission of the person
(s) in control of premises to ensure they do
not unknowingly exceed limits imposed by the
Act on the numbers of temporary events that
can be notified.

Page 14



South Holland DIstrict Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only)

    9

3.15 Organisers of Temporary Events are required to
give Notice to the Licensing Authority no later
than 10 clear working days before the day on
which the event period begins. The 10 day
period does not include the day the Temporary
Event Notice was received by the Licensing
Authority, the day of the event itself, Saturdays
and Sundays or Bank Holidays. 

Organisers are encouraged to submit their
notifications to the Licensing Authority and
Police as soon as is reasonably practical in
order for the Police to consider whether or not
there are any concerns and where there are
concerns, to enable all parties to take the
necessary steps to resolve them. Where less
than 10 clear working days notice is given, the
notice WILL NOT be authorized and the event
will be illegal. Provision of licensable activities
except in accordance with the Licensing Act is
an offence.

3.16 The Licensing Authority recommends that for
normal temporary events that at least 20
working days and no more than 40 working
days notice be given. For events that may
attract larger numbers of people or may have
an impact on traffic or road management, earlier
contact with responsible authorities, the
Highway Authority (and possibly the
Lincolnshire Event Safety Advisory Group)
is advisable.

3.17 It is strongly recommended that advice on fire
safety be sought from Lincolnshire Fire and
Rescue.

3.18 Event organizers are reminded of Police powers
to close down events without notice, on the
grounds of disorder, the likelihood of disorder,
or public nuisance. The Licensing Authority
therefore expects organizers to be ware of their
responsibilities under the licensing laws.

3.19 Large Scale Events of more than 500 People

Organisers of major festivals and carnivals
should approach the Licensing Authority at the
earliest opportunity to discuss arrangements for
the licensing of those activities falling under the
2003 Act.

In respect of some events, the organisers may
seek a single premises licence to cover a wide
range of activities at varied locations within the
premises. Anyone wishing to hold such an
event should notify the Licensing Authority no
less than 6 months before the event is due to
happen. 

This will allow time for the preparation of a
substantial operating schedule, about which the
Licensing Authority will offer advice and
assistance. If necessary, the Licensing Authority
will act as a co-ordinating body for preliminary
input from the responsible authorities prior to
formal notification about the event. 

The Licensing Authority would advise applicants
to consult with those Authorities concerned with
public safety and in appropriate cases be
required to formulate a safety plan with
Lincolnshire Event Safety Advisory Group
(LESAG). LESAG is not a responsible authority
but is made up from representatives from
bodies concerned with public safety; some of
which are responsible authorities. 

Applicants are advised that the planning and
consultation with LESAG should commence at
an early stage on particularly large events
promoters/organisers should commence
consultation at least a year in advance
of the event.

3.20 It is also advisable for applicants to read the
guidance for large scale events called HSG195,
The Event Safety Guide (for health, safety and
welfare at music and similar events) known as
the purple guide.

3.21 Personal Licences

Applicants for a Personal Licence are expected
to make their application in accordance with the
Act and any regulations made thereunder.
Failure to meet this requirement may result in
the application being returned.

Page 15



        10

South Holland DIstrict Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only)

3.22 Where an application for a personal licence
reveals a disclosable conviction for a relevant
offence under the Act, the Licensing Authority
recommends that the Police carry out full and
proper enquiries (including interviewing
applicants as necessary) so as to provide
evidence as to the reasons the crime
prevention objective will be undermined by
the grant of the licence before exercising its
discretion to make an objection.

4.0 Licensing Hours

4.1 The Licensing Authority recognises that fixed
and artificially early closing times in certain
areas can lead to peaks of disorder and
disturbance on the streets when large
numbers of people leave licensed premises at
the same time. Longer licensing hours
regarding the sale of alcohol may therefore be
considered as an important factor in reducing
friction at late   night food outlets, taxi ranks
and other sources of transport.

4.2 As far as the Licensing Authority’s overall
approach to licensing hours is concerned it is
not intended that any form of zoning will be
introduced. Experience in other areas shows
that this can lead to the significant movement
of people across boundaries in search of
premises opening later, which puts greater
pressure on town centres than is necessary
and can lead to increased disorder.

4.3 Shops, stores and supermarkets should
generally be permitted to sell alcohol for
consumption off the premises during the
normal hours they intend to open for shopping
purposes. However, in the case of individual
shops that are known to be or are in an area
which is known to be a focus of disorder and
disturbance then, subject to receiving valid,
relevant representations, a limitation on
licensing hours may be appropriate.
However each application will be considered
on its own merits.

4.4 The Licensing Authority will deal with the issue
of licensing hours on the individual merits of
each application. When issuing a licence or
certificate, stricter conditions with regard to
noise control and/or limitations to opening
hours may be imposed in the case of
premises which are situated in largely
residential or sensitive areas when
representations have  been received.

4.5 The Licensing Authority recommends
applicants applying for extended hours
to cater for non-specified dates, such as
international sporting events, to make
provision on their operating schedules to
address the licensing objectives for these
specific times applied for. For example a
different set of operating conditions may
apply during these extended hours.

5.0 Licensing Objectives

5.1 Each of the four licensing objectives is of
equal importance. The Licensing Authority
considers the effective and responsible
management of the premises and the
instruction, training and supervision of staff in
the adoption of best practice to be amongst
the most essential control measures for the
achievement of the licensing objectives. For
this reason it is recommended these elements
be specifically considered and addressed
within an applicant’s operating schedule.
The Community Safety Partnership Codes of
Practice for the South Lincolnshire Night time
Economy may be of some assistance in
ensuring that premises are well managed
and run.

5.2 The Licensing Authority recommends that
applicants carry out their own risk
assessments in relation to the four licensing
objectives in order to assist them in deciding
whether any steps are required to be taken
in order to meet those objectives.

Page 16



South Holland DIstrict Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only)

    11

5.3 Although not a requirement under the
legislation, applicants are advised to copy
any risk assessments undertaken to the
responsible authorities in order that they
can assess the suitability of the operating
schedule. This may assist in reducing the
number of representations and subsequent
hearings.

5.4 Prevention of Crime and Disorder

The Licensing Authority will carry out it’s
licensing functions with a view to promoting
the prevention of crime and disorder and will
seek to ensure that licence holders take
measures to control the behaviour of persons
whilst on their premises, or in the immediate
vicinity of the premises.

5.5 In addition to the requirement for the Licensing
Authority to promote this licensing objective, it
also has a duty under Section 17 of the Crime
and Disorder Act 1998 to exercise its functions
with due regard to the likely effect of the
exercise of those functions on, and do all it
reasonably can to prevent, crime and disorder
in the District.

5.6 The Licensing Authority will expect applicants
to include in their operating schedules, the
steps they propose to take to detect, reduce,
and deter crime and disorder. 

These steps will vary from premises to
premises and according to the type of
licensable activities that are to be carried on.
Door supervision will be one of the control
measures that can be considered by
applicants, who will need to consider the
location and type of their premises when
considering this option. For example, there
may be a greater need to provide door
supervision in town centre public houses than
at village premises. 

Applicants should seek advice from the Police
on control measures under this licensing
objective. It is recommended that applicants
discuss the measures they intend to take with
the Police prior to making the application to try
and reduce representations.

5.7 Examples of measures the Licensing Authority
may expect applicants to consider and
address in their operating schedule include:

n Participation in a scheme to reduce crime 
and disorder e.g. membership of Pubwatch

n Physical security features e.g. use of 
polycarbonate, toughened or plastic 
drinking glasses

n Procedure for risk assessment of alcohol 
promotions to ensure that they do not 
promote irresponsible drinking or  
potentially breach the mandatory condition 
on irresponsible drinks promotions

n The use and numbers of SIA licensed    
door supervisors

n Amount of seating to be provided to reduce 
the risk of high volume vertical drinking

n Training given to staff in crime prevention 
and drug awareness measures

n Training given to staff to prevent the sale of 
alcohol to those who are under age or 
appearing to be drunk

n Adoption of the challenge 21 or challenge 
25 policy

n Measures agreed with the Police to reduce 
crime and disorder

n Measures to prevent the use or supply of 
illegal drugs, including the installation and 
use of drug safes

n Search Procedures

n Provision of CCTV in and around the 
premises

n Formulation of a dispersal policy

n Measures to prevent glasses and bottles 
being taken away from the licensed 
premises.

Page 17



        12

South Holland DIstrict Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only)

5.8 Public Safety

The Licensing Authority will carry out its
licensing functions with a view to promoting
public safety and will seek to ensure that
licence holders take measures to protect the
safety of both performers and persons
attending licensable activities. The risk to
public safety will vary according to the type of
premises and the activities carried out.

5.9 The Licensing Authority will expect applicants
to include in their operating schedules the
steps they propose to take to promote
public safety.

5.10 Where an applicant identifies an issue in
regard to public safety (including fire safety)
which is not covered by existing legislation,
the applicant should identify in their operating
schedule the steps which will be taken to
ensure public safety. Depending on the
individual style and characteristics of the
premises and/or events the following issues
might be of relevance:

n suggested occupancy figures (including 
staff and performers)

n the use of equipment and effects

n levels of door supervision

n measures to prevent the supply and use of 
illegal drugs

n physical security features e.g. the use of 
toughened drinking glasses or plastic 
containers

n fire safety training and evacuation procedures

n controls on the removal of glasses, bottles 
and other drinking containers from licensed 
premises where alcohol is consumed

n control measures in place, such as the 
provision of seating and tables, to reduce 
high volume vertical drinking

n provision of CCTV

5.11 The occupancy capacity for premises, and 
events as appropriate, is a fundamental factor
in the achievement of the four licensing
objectives (except in respect of premises
licensed for the consumption of food and

/or alcohol off the premises). The Licensing
Authority recommends the issue of occupancy
capacity (including staff and performers) to be
considered and addressed within the
premises’ fire assessment.

5.12 The design and layout of premises are
important in determining capacity, as is the
availability and size of exits within
recommended travel distances. Other factors
should also be considered when assessing
the appropriate capacity for premises or
events. These include but are not limited to:

n The nature of the premises or event,

n The nature of the licensable activities    
being provided,

n The provision or removal of such items as 
temporary structures, such as a stage,       
or furniture,

n The number of staff available to supervise 
customers both ordinarily and in the event of
an emergency,

n The customer profile,

n Availability of suitable and sufficient sanitary 
accommodation,

n Nature and provision of facilities for 
ventilation.

5.13 The agreement to a capacity for premises or
events should not be interpreted as a
requirement in all cases to also provide
permanent monitoring arrangements such as
door staff, attendance clickers or maintenance
of attendance records. 

The Licensing Authority recognises that the
person in charge at the premises can often
readily assess the capacity of the premises
without resort to such measures. 

However, where the capacity is likely to be
reached (such as on known busy evenings)
and particularly where a special event or
promotion is planned, the applicant is advised
to detail the additional arrangements that will
be put in place to ensure the capacity of the
premises is not exceeded.

Page 18



South Holland DIstrict Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only)

    13

5.14 Prevention of Public Nuisance

Licensed premises have a significant potential
to impact adversely upon communities
through public nuisance arising as a result of
their activities. The Licensing Authority’s aim is
to maintain and protect the amenity of
residents and other businesses from the
potential impact of licensed premises by
promoting the need to prevent public
nuisance, whilst at the same time recognising
the valuable cultural, social and economic
importance of such premises.

5.15 The Licensing Authority intends to interpret
‘public nuisance’ in it’s widest sense and takes
it to include such issues as noise, light, odour,
litter and anti-social behaviour, where these
matters impact on those living, working or
otherwise engaged in normal activity in the
area affected.

5.16 The Licensing Authority will expect applicants
to include in their operating schedules, the
steps they propose to take to prevent public
nuisance. These steps will vary from premises
to premises and according to the type of
licensable activities that are to be carried on.

5.17 When addressing public nuisance the
applicant should initially identify any particular
issues (having regard to their particular type of
premises and/or activities) which are likely to
adversely affect the promotion of the objective
to prevent public nuisance. Such steps as are
required to deal with these identified issues
should be included within the applicants
operating schedule.

5.18 These issues may include:

n The location of the premises and the 
proximity to residential and other noise 
sensitive premises such as hospitals, 
hospices, schools and places of worship

n The hours of opening, particularly where 
this will include times between 23.00 hours 
and 07.00 hours

n The nature of the activities to be provided, 
including whether those activities are of a 
temporary or permanent nature and whether
they are to be carried on inside or outside 
the premises; whilst consumption of alcohol 
is not a licensable activity, the Licensing 
Authority will expect consumption areas to 
be shown on the application and a 
description of the measures to be taken to 
prevent public nuisance

n The design and layout of the premises and 
`in particular the presence of noise limiting 
and/or monitoring features

n The occupancy capacity of the premises

n Any ‘wind-down period’ between the end of 
licensable activities and the closure of the 
premises

n Last admission times

n The availability of public transport

n The availability of parking and access to 
such parking

5.19 The following examples of control measures
are given to assist applicants who may need
to take account of them in their operating
schedule, depending upon the particular type
of premises and the activities to be carried on:

n Effective and responsible management of 
the premises

n Appropriate instruction, training and 
supervision of those employed or engaged, 
to prevent incidents of public nuisance e.g. 
to ensure that customers leave quietly

n Control of operating hours for all or part of 
the premises (e.g. garden areas), including 
restrictions on the time of deliveries where 
necessary to control public nuisance

n Adoption of best practice guidance (e.g. 
Good Practice Guide on the Control of 
Noise from Pubs and Clubs, produced by 
the Institute of Acoustics)

nInstallation of soundproofing, air 
conditioning, acoustic lobbies and sound 
limiting devices

Page 19



        14

South Holland DIstrict Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only)

n Management of people, including staff and 
customers entering and leaving the 
premises

n The effective management of vehicular 
traffic entering and leaving the site, 
including vehicle horns, loud music from 
vehicle radio’s etc

n Liaison with public transport providers

n Care in the siting of external lighting 
including security lighting

n Management arrangements for the 
collection and proper disposal of litter 
resulting from premises, including that 
generated by customers

n Effective ventilation systems to prevent 
nuisance from odour emissions

n Undertaking noise impact assessments

n Regular monitoring of the perimeter by staff 
to ensure that noise emanating from the 
premises is not likely to cause public 
nuisance

n Provision of CCTV

n The need for temporary traffic        
regulation orders

n Signage requiring customers to leave the 
premises in a quiet and orderly manner.

5.20 The Protection of Children from Harm

The Licensing Authority recognises the great
variety of premises for which licences may be
sought. These include theatres, cinemas,
restaurants, pubs, nightclubs, cafes,
takeaways, community halls or centres and
schools. Except where prohibited by law,
access by children to all types of premises will
not be limited in any way unless it is
considered necessary to do so to protect them
from harm.

5.21 When deciding whether to limit access to
children or not, the Licensing Authority will
judge each application on its own individual
merits.

5.22 After receiving relevant representations on
limiting access to children, the Licensing
Authority, when deciding whether to limit
access to children or not, will judge each
application on its own individual merits.
Examples, which may give rise to concern in
respect of children and would likely lead to a
refusal of permitting access to children under
18, would include premises - 

n where entertainment or services of an adult 
or sexual nature are provided

n where there has been a conviction of a 
members of the current staff at the premises
for serving alcohol to minors or with a 
reputation for underage drinking

nwith a known association (having been 
provided with evidence) with drug taking
or dealing

n where there is a strong element of gambling
on the premises (but not, for example, the 
simple presence of a small number of cash 
prize gaming machines)

n where the supply of alcohol for 
consumption on the premises is the 
exclusive or primary purpose of the services 
provided at the premises.

5.23 The Act makes it an offence for children under
16, who are not accompanied by an adult,
to be present on premises being used
exclusively or primarily for the supply of
alcohol for consumption on those premises
under the terms of a premises licence, club
premises certificate, or where that activity is
carried on in accordance with a temporary
event notice. In addition it is an offence to
permit the presence of children under 16 who
are not accompanied by an adult between
midnight and 5am at other premises supplying
alcohol for consumption on premises holding
a premises licence, club premises certificate
or temporary event notice. The Licensing
Authority will not knowingly support
applications which would permit these
offences to occur and may impose
conditions in specific cases to ensure
the protection of children from harm.

Page 20



South Holland DIstrict Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only)

    15

5.24 As well as being a criminal offence, the sale of
alcohol to children and young persons can
lead to harm to them and can lead to public
nuisance and crime and disorder. The
Licensing Authority will therefore expect there
to be adequate controls in place at licensed
premises to prevent the sale of alcohol to
children and young persons, except where
such sales are permitted in law.

5.25The Licensing Authority recognises that
Lincolnshire County Council Trading
Standards Service, as part of its
responsibilities and duties under legislation
controlling the sale of age restricted products
including alcohol, provides advice and
guidance to the licensed trade on the controls
and systems that may be adopted to help
prevent such sales. The Licensing Authority
also recognises that in liaison with the Police,
the Trading Standards Service conducts
covert test purchasing exercises in response
to complaints and information received to
check compliance with the law.

5.26 In the case of premises which are used for
film exhibitions, conditions will be imposed
restricting access only to those who meet the
required age limit in line with any certificate
granted by the British Board of Film
Classification or, in specific cases, a
certificate given to the film by the
Licensing Authority itself.

5.27 Where a large number of children are likely to
be present on any licensed premises, for
example, a children’s show or pantomime,
then subject to receiving relevant
representation, conditions may be imposed
requiring the presence of an appropriate
number of adult staff to ensure public safety
and their protection from harm.

5.28 The onus will be on the premises licence
holder to ensure that staff members are
suitable to carry out the supervision of
children, which may include a criminal record
disclosure from the Criminal Records Bureau.

5.29 It is recommended that licence holders ensure
that systems are in place to ensure proof of
age where necessary to prevent children and
young persons being served alcohol, or as
applicable licensed premises under certain
circumstances as required by law, or through
their own policy. It is suggested that the
following means should be considered for
assessing proof of age:

n passport

n photo-card driving licence issued by an       
EU country

n an accredited proof of age scheme identity 
card bearing the PASS (Proof of Age 
Standards Scheme) Logo

n an official ID card issued by HM Forces or 
other EU Country Forces, bearing the 
photograph and date of birth of the bearer

5.30 The options available for limiting access by
children would include:

n limitations on the hours when children may 
be present

n limitations on the exclusion of the presence 
of children under certain ages when 
particular specified activities are taking 
place and to ensure such activities cannot 
be viewed by children

n limitations on the parts of premises to which
children might be given access

n age limitations (below 18)

n requirements for accompanying adults 
(including for example, a combination of 
requirements which provide that children 
under a particular age must be 
accompanied by an adult)

n full exclusion of those people under 18 from 
the premises when any licensable activities 
are taking place

5.31 The Licensing Authority will not impose any
condition that specifically requires access for
children to be provided at any premises.
Where no restriction or limitation is imposed
the issue of access will remain a matter for the
discretion of the individual licensee or club.

Page 21



        16

South Holland DIstrict Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only)

5.32 Where licence holders wish to employ
children they should ensure that the
legislation regarding this matter is complied
with and any necessary permits to work have
been obtained. Further information on the
requirements of this legislation are available
from the Lincolnshire Safeguarding
Children Board.

5.33 In respect of premises licensed for the sale of
alcohol, the Licensing Authority commends
the Portman Group Code of Practice on the
Naming, Packaging and Promotion of
Alcoholic Drinks and compliance with the
Retail Alert Bulletin.

5.34 The sale of alcohol to children and young
persons under the relevant age is a criminal
offence, often resulting in harm to the children
and young persons concerned and
disturbance and nuisance to local residents
and businesses. Applicants should detail
adequate control measures in their operating
schedule to prevent under-age sales.

5.35 The Licensing Authority recognises that
Lincolnshire County Council Trading
Standards Service, as part of its
responsibilities and duties under the
legislation controlling the sale of age restricted
products, including alcohol, provides advice
and guidance on the controls and systems
that may be adopted to help prevent such
sales. The Licensing Authority also recognises
that in liaison with the Police, the Trading
Standards Service conducts covert test
purchasing exercises in response to
complaints and information received to check
compliance with the law.

5.36 Mandatory conditions require the adoption of
a proof of age scheme. TheLicensing Authority
commends a scheme such as the British
Retail Consortium’s Proof of Age Standards
Scheme (PASS), the” Challenge 21” scheme,
“Challenge 25” scheme or any locally or
nationally approved scheme. All staff engaged
in the sale or supply of alcohol should be fully
trained in the application of the policy
adopted.

5.37 The body responsible for the interests of
children is:

The Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children’s
Board which can be contacted through
Lincolnshire County Council.

5.38 If an applicant intends to provide any
entertainment of an adult nature then the
Licensing Authority will expect a detailed
description of those activities and the
measures the applicant intends to take to
protect children from harm. Please see
section headed ‘Nudity and Striptease’.

5.39 For the avoidance of doubt, the lists of
examples given of measures applicants may
take to promote the licensing objectives are
not mandatory and will not be applied in all
cases. These examples are given to assist
applicants in deciding the measures they
may take.

6.0 Cumulative Impact

6.1 The cumulative impact of licensed premises
on the promotion of the licensing objectives is
a matter which the Licensing Authority can
take into account. This should not, however,
be confused with ‘need’ which relates more to
the commercial demand for a particular type
of premises, for example a pub, restaurant or
hotel. The issue of ‘need’ is therefore a matter
for planning consideration or for the market to
decide and does not form part of this licensing
policy statement.

6.2 The Licensing Authority may receive
representations from either a responsible
authority or an interested party, (both defined
by the Act), that the cumulative impact of new
licences is leading to an area becoming
saturated with premises of a certain type,
making it a focal point for large groups of
people to gather, and thereby creating
exceptional problems of disorder and
nuisance over and above the impact from the
individual premises themselves. In such cases
the issue of cumulative impact can be taken
into account when considering the individual
merits of any application.

Page 22



South Holland DIstrict Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only)

    17

6.3 The Licensing Authority will not operate a
quota of any kind which would pre-determine
any application, nor will it seek to impose
general limitations on trading hours in
particular areas. Instead, regard will be
given to the individual characteristics of the
premises concerned within a given area.
It is recognised that pubs, nightclubs,
restaurants, hotels, theatres, and other
clubs all sell alcohol, serve food and provide
entertainment but with contrasting styles and
characteristics. Proper regard will be had to
those differences and the impact they are
likely to have on the local community.

6.4 The decision to include a special policy relating
to cumulative impact, within this policy, will be
evidentially based. The steps that will be
followed in considering whether to include
such a special policy are:

n identification of concern about crime and 
disorder or public nuisance

n consideration of whether it can be 
demonstrated that crime and disorder and 
nuisance are arising and are caused by 
customers of licensed premises, and if so 
identifying the area from which problems are
arising and the boundaries of that area; or 
that the risk factors are such that the area is 
reaching a point where cumulative impact is 
imminent

n consultation with those specified by section 
5(3) of the 2003 Act as part of the general 
consultation required in respect of the whole
statement of licensing policy

n subject to that consultation, inclusion of a 
special policy about future premises licence 
or club premises certificate applications 
from that area within the terms of the 
Guidance issued by the DCMS under 
section 182 of the Act within this policy

n publication of the special policy as part of 
this policy.

6.5 There are a number of other mechanisms for
addressing issues of unruly behavior which
occurs away from licensed premises.       

These include:

n planning controls

n positive measures to create a safe and 
clean town centre environment in 
partnership with local businesses, transport 
operators and other departments of the 
local authority

n the provision of CCTV surveillance in town 
centres, ample taxi ranks, provision of public
conveniences open late at night, street 
cleaning and litter patrols

n Police enforcement of the general law 
concerning disorder and antisocial behavior,
including the issuing of fixed penalty notices

n the prosecution of any personal licence 
holder or member of staff at such premises 
who is selling alcohol to people who are 
drunk

n Police powers to close down instantly for up
to 24 hours any licensed premises or 
temporary event on grounds of disorder, the
likelihood of disorder or noise emanating 
from the premises causing a nuisance

n the power of the Police, other responsible 
authorities or a local resident or business to 
seek a review of the licence or certificate in 
question.

n Powers for the Council to designate parts of 
the local authority area as places where 
alcohol may not be consumed publicly

n Directions to leave under section 27 of the 
violent crime reduction act 2006

n The prosecution of any personal licence 
holder or member of staff at such premises 
who is selling alcohol to people who are 
drunk

6.6 The Licensing Authority may address a
numbof these issues through the Crime
Reduction Partnership and County
Licensing Group in line with the strategic
objectives for crime and disorder
reduction within the District.

Page 23



        18

South Holland DIstrict Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only)

7.0 Live Music Events in “Small
Premises” Nudity and Striptease

7.1 The Act outlines at Section 177 certain
exemptions relating to certain “small
premises”, that is where the capacity limit of
the premises is less than 200 persons.

7.2 In the context of Section 177 exemptions,
where an applicant wishes to take advantage
of the special provisions set out in this section,
the premises’ fire risk assessment should take
account of the occupancy calculations
conducted by the applicant. This calculation
must be submitted to the Fire Authority for
confirmation of the “permitted capacity”.

7.3 The Policing and Crime Act 2009 has
amended the Licensing Act 2003 and the
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions)
Act 1982 and introduced a new licence, the
sexual entertainment venue licence which
permits entertainment such as lap dancing,
striptease and similar entertainment termed
relevant entertainment.

7.4 If an operator wishes to provide entertainment
covered by the amended 1982 Act then a
licence under that Act will have to be obtained.
If the venue is exempted from requiring such a
licence under the amended1982 Act (due to
the infrequent nature of providing the
entertainment) an authority to provide such
entertainment shall be required under the
2003 Act.

7.5 Additionally, any regulated entertainment
not covered by the definition of relevant
entertainment under the 1992 Act will need
an authorization under the 2003 Act. As most
venues providing relevant entertainment under
the 1982 Act would also provide for the sale or
supply of alcohol; both an authorization under
the 2003 Act and a licence under the 1982 Act
will be required.

7.6 At the time of this policy, the Council has
not adopted the new provisions under the
1982 Act.

8.0 Conditions of Licence

8.1 The Licensing Authority does not propose to
implement standard conditions on the licenses
across the board. It may instead draw upon the
model pool of conditions issued by the DCMS
in Annex D of the Guidance issued under
Section 182 of the Act (viewable through the
DCMS website www.culture.gov.uk) and attach
conditions as appropriate given the
circumstances of each individual case.

8.2 Where the responsible authorities and
interested parties do not raise any
representatives about an application made
to the Licensing Authority, it is the duty of the
Licensing Authority to grant the licence or
certificate subject only to conditions that are
consistent with the operating schedule or club
operating schedule and any mandatory
conditions prescribed in the 2003 Act itself.

8.3 When considering conditions the Licensing
Authority will look to the relevant responsible
authorities to assist and advise on the
appropriate measures to be taken.

8.4 Where an applicant considers that the
representations may be likely or probable,
it is recommended that the applicant discuss
the proposal with the Licensing Authority and
those from whom they think representations
are likely to be made prior to submitting their
application.

8.5 The Licensing Authority is aware of the need
to avoid measures which deter live music,
dancing and theatre by imposing indirect
costs of a substantial nature and will take
account of this when imposing conditions.

9.0 Advice and Guidance

9.1 For further guidance and advice on the
application process, please contact the
Licensing section at:             

South Holland District Council,
Priory Road,
Spalding,
Lincs. PE11 2XE

Page 24



South Holland DIstrict Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only)

    19

10.0 Enforcement

10.1 The Licensing Authority intends to establish
protocols with the Police and other enforcing
authorities. These protocols will provide for the
targeting of agreed problem and high-risk
premises, whilst providing a lighter touch in
respect of low risk premises which are well
run.

10.2 An Enforcement Protocol has been
established by the Licensing Authority in order
to facilitate co-operation and co-ordination
between enforcement agencies in pursuance
of the Licensing Act 2003. The protocol will
underpin the mutual operational support
required to tackle licensing issues and seek
to detail the role of each agency in promoting
the licensing objectives.

10.3 In general, action will only be taken in
accordance with the Council’s own
enforcement policy, which reflects the
agreed principles which are consistent with
the Enforcement Concordat. To this end the
key principles of targeting, consistency,
transparency and proportionality will be
maintained.

11.0 Review

11.1 The Policy Statement will remain in existence
for a maximum period of 3 years and will be
subject to review and further consultation
before any new policy comes into force;
however the Policy will be subject to
continuous review, although the Council will
only make revisions following appropriate
consultation.

12.0 Consultation

12.1 Consultation has been carried out with the
following, in line with the Consultation Strategy
published by the Council in August 2004, in
respect of this policy:

n the police

n the fire service

n representatives of licence holders

n local businesses and their representatives

n local residents and their representatives    

as required by the Licensing Act 2003,
as well as:

n Other bodies including other South Holland 
District Council Departments and Elected 
Members, Lincolnshire County Council, 
Licensing Justices, relevant trade 
associations, Parish Councils,           
licensing solicitors

When this policy is reviewed after three years as
required by the Act, or at any other time,
consultation will be carried out in a similar manner.

13.0 Monitoring

13.1 Head of Community and Neighbourhood
Services, Neighbourhood Services Manager,
Team Leader (Food Safety and Licensing).

14.0 Policy Approval

14.1 Committee of the Licensing Authority.

15.0 Related Policies and Strategies

15.1

n Crime and Disorder Policy

n Taxi Licensing Policy (Draft at time of writing)

n Lincolnshire County Council Transport Policy

Page 25



        20

South Holland DIstrict Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only)

Matter to be dealt with
Licensing
Committee

Sub Committee /
Licensing Panel

Officers        

Application for personal licence If a police objection If no objection is made

Application for personal licence
with unspent convictions

All cases

Application for premises licence /
club premises certificate

If a relevant representation is made If no relevant representation is made

Application for
provisional statement

If a relevant representation is made If no relevant representation is made

Application to vary premises
licence / club premises certificate

If a relevant representation is made If no relevant representation is made

Application to vary designated
premises supervisor

If a police objection All other cases

Request to be removed as
designated premises supervisor

All cases

Application for transfer
of premises licence

If a police objection All other cases

Application for interim authorities If a police objection All other cases

Application to review premises
licence / club premises certificate

All cases

Decision on whether a complaint is
irrelevant frivolous vexatious etc

All cases

Decision to object when local
authority is a consultee and not the
relevant authority considering the
application

All cases

Determination of a police objection
to a temporary event notice

All cases

Appendix 1

Delegation of Functions

The delegation of functions in relation to Licensing matters are as follows:

Page 26



    21
Page 27



        22

South Holland District Council

Council Offices

Priory Road

Spalding

Lincolnshire

PE11 2XE

tel 01775 761161

fax 01775 711054

email: licensing@sholland.gov.uk

www.sholland.gov.uk

Page 28



DRAFT

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

South Holland District Council 
Licensing Policy Statement 
(Licensing Act 2003 only) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

2015 draft Licensing Team Page 29

tbentley_2
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX B - DRAFT POLICY



South Holland District Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only) 

2 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contents 
 
 

Policy Aim 3 

1. Introduction 4 

2. Integrated  Strategies  and  the Avoidance  of  Duplication 7 

3. The Licensing Process 7 

4. Licensing Hours 10 

5. Licensing Objectives 10 

6. Cumulative Impact 16 

7. Sexual Entertainment Venues 17 

8. Conditions of Licence 17 

9. Advice and Guidance 17 

10. Enforcement 18 

11. Review 18 

12. Consultation 18 

Appendix 1 - Delegation of Functions 20 

Page 30



South Holland District Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only) 

3 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
South Holland District Council - Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only) 

Replaces  Policy 

Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003) 

Policy Number 

0006 (revised) 

Policy Aim 
The aim of this policy is to make sure that all parties 
involved in the licensing of activities covered by the 
Licensing Act 2003 understand the policy of the 
Council in relation to the four licensing objectives 
stated in the Act, namely: 

 the prevention of crime and disorder 

 public safety 

 the prevention of public nuisance 

 the protection of children from harm. 

Page 31



South Holland District Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only) 

4 

 

 

 
 
 

1.0  Introduction 

1.1 South Holland District Council is situated in 
the county of Lincolnshire, which contains 
seven district councils in total.  The council 
area has a population of approximately 
88,300 (2011 census figure).  South Holland 
District covers a geographical area of 
approximately 750 sqkm (290 square miles) and is 
situated in the south eastern corner of 
Lincolnshire also boarding the counties of 
Cambridgeshire and Norfolk.  The District is 
mainly rural but comprises of a total of 47 
towns and villages including the main town of 
Spalding. 

1.2 South Holland District Council (herein referred 
to as the Licensing Authority) is responsible 
for the licensing of all licensable activities 
under the Licensing Act 2003 (the Act).  This 
document sets out the policies and principles 
that the Licensing Authority will apply when 
making decisions on applications for: 

 sale by retail of alcohol 

 supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a 
club 

 provision of regulated entertainment 

 a performance of a play 

 an exhibition of a film 

 an indoor sporting event 

 boxing or wrestling entertainment 

 a performance of live music 

 playing of recorded music 

 a performance of dance 

 provision of late night 
refreshment (between 11.00pm 
and 05.00am) 

1.3 This policy is intended to provide clarity to 
applicants, ‘Other Persons’ (any individual, 

body or business entitled to make 
representation to an application under the 

Act and ‘Responsible Authorities’ on how this 
Licensing Authority will determine 

applications under the Act. 

1.4 Guidance is made available to assist 
applicants and can be found on the Council’s 
website www.sholland.gov.uk; however, the 
Guidance does not form part of this Policy. 

1.5 The Licensing Authority has a duty under 
the Act to carry out its functions with a view 
to promoting the 4 licensing objectives. 

These are: 

 the prevention of crime and disorder 

 public safety 

 the prevention of public nuisance 

 the protection of children from harm 

1.6 It is recognised that the licensing function is 
only one means of securing the delivery of the 
above objectives and should not therefore be 
seen as a universal solution for solving all 
problems within the community.  The 
Licensing Authority will therefore continue to 
work in partnership with neighbouring 
authorities, the responsible authorities, local 
businesses and local people towards the 
promotion of the objectives as outlined. 

1.7 Where the licensing authority acts as a 
responsible authority, appropriate steps will be 
taken to ensure separation of the roles and 
transparency in the decision making process is 
clear. 

1.8 In preparing this Policy Statement the Licensing 
Authority has consulted with the following: 

 the police 

 the fire service 

 the Planning authority 

 Health and safety authorities 

 Environmental Health and Pollution 

 Trading Standards 

 Lincolnshire Child Protection Board 

 Navigation Authorities 

 Representatives of licence and club premises 
certificate holders 

 Local businesses and their representatives 

 Local residents and their representatives 

 The body responsible for child protection 

 Director of Public Health 

 Other relevant bodies 

Page 32



South Holland District Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only) 

5 

 

 

 
1.9 Appropriate weight has been given to the 

views of all those consulted prior to this 
policy statement taking effect. 

1.10 The purpose of licensing is to control 
licensable activities and authorisations within 
the terms of the Act.  Conditions are likely to 
be attached to licences and the various other 
permissions which will focus on matters falling 
within the control of individual licence holders. 

1.11 These conditions will relate to the premises 
and other places being used for licensable 
activities and the impact of those activities in 
the surrounding area.  In this regard the 
Licensing Authority will primarily focus on the 
direct impact of any activities taking place on 
those living, working or otherwise engaged in 
the area concerned. 

1.12 There is no definition of vicinity within the 
Act and it may vary in distance away from the 
premises dependent on the nature of the area.  
Certain considerations may be taken into 
account in assessing representations. 

These may include but are not limited to: 

 The nature of the licensable activity; 

 The nature and locality of the premises; 

 The time of day of the proposed licensable 
activity; and  

 The frequency of the activity. 

1.13 Where the responsible authorities and other 
persons do not raise any representations 
about the application made to the Licensing 
Authority, it is the duty of the authority to 
grant the licence or certificate subject only to 
conditions that are consistent with the 
operating schedule or club operating schedule 
and any mandatory conditions prescribed in 
the 2003 Act itself. 

1.14 The Licensing Authority may not, therefore, 
impose any conditions unless the applicant 
agrees to certain conditions being applied to 
the licence where there have been relevant 
representations.  Where no agreement is 
reached, then the matter will be heard by the 
licensing panel.  Conditions will then only be 
applied where there are relevant 
representations and the panel is satisfied such 
conditions are appropriate to promote the 
licensing objectives arising out of the 
consideration of the representations. 

 
1.15 In order to minimise problems and the 

necessity for hearings, it would be sensible for 
applicants and clubs to consult with 
responsible authorities when operating 
schedules are being prepared.  This would 
allow for proper liaison before representations 
prove necessary. 

1.16 In undertaking its licensing function the 
licensing authority is also bound by other 
legislation including but not limited to: 

 [Section 17 of the] Crime and Disorder Act 
1998 – requiring a local authority to do all 
that it reasonably can to prevent crime and 
disorder in its decision-making process 

 Human Rights Act 1998 - giving effect to the 
European Convention on Human Rights 
which places a duty on public authorities to 
protect the rights of individuals in a variety 
of circumstances 

 Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974 and 
subsidiary regulations – providing for 
minimum standards of health, safety and 
welfare of workers and protect against risks 
to health and safety from workplace 
activities 

 Environmental Protection Act 1990 – 
providing for improved control of pollution 
arising from the environment, e.g. waste, 
statutory nuisance and litter to enable 
enforcement to minimum environmental 
standards 

 Food Safety Act 1990, subsidiary regulations 
and EC food hygiene regulations – governing 
minimum safety standards for food 
preparation, labelling and advertising 

 Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2003 – providing 
for methods of dealing with and taking legal 
enforcement action against anti-social 
behavior 

 Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 
2014 – reform of powers to deal with anti-
social behaviour, litter, vandalism, 
drunkenness, aggressive dogs, noisy and 
abusive neighbours 

 The Clean Neighbourhoods and 
Environment Act 2005 – provides more 
effective powers to tackle poor 
environmental quality and anti-social 
behavior 

 The Gambling Act 2005 – provisions relating 
to regulation of gambling activities 

Page 33



South Holland District Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only) 

6 

 

 

 
 The Noise Act 1996 – provisions about 

night time noise, forfeiture and confiscation 
of equipment used for emitting such noise 

 The Violent Crime Reduction Act 2006 – 
provisions for reducing and dealing with 
alcohol abuse, firearms and ammunition, 
knives/other weapons and changes to 
earlier laws 

 The Policing and Crime Act 2009 - 
provisions amending regulation of lap-
dancing clubs, police powers to deal with 
young persons drinking in public, new 
mandatory code of practice for alcohol 
sales, and changes to criminal asset recovery 

 The Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 
2005 – provision to reform law relating to 
fire safety in non-domestic premises, 
replacing fire certification under the Fire 
Safety Act 1971, placing responsibility on 
individuals within an organisation to carry 
out risk assessments to identify, manage and 
reduce the risk of fire 

 The Police Reform and Social Responsibility 
Act 2011 – provisions about administration 
and governance of police forces; licensing 
and imposition of late night levy relating to 
alcohol, repealing provisions about alcohol 
disorder zones, provisions controlling 
harmful drugs 

 The Legislative and Regulatory Reform Act 
2006 – provisions about regulatory 
activities and interpretation of European 
law 

 The Health Act 2006 – legal obligation to 
protect employees and the public from the 
harmful effects of second-hand smoke in 
virtually all enclosed public places, 
workplaces and public and work vehicles in 
England 

 The Provision of Services Regulations 2009 
(SI 2009/2999) – provisions enacting 
European Directive 2006/123/EC, relating 
to online applications for licences 

 The Local Government Act 1972 – 
provisions enabling byelaws to be made by 
local authorities for the good rule and 
government of all or part of an area and 
for the prevention and suppression of 
nuisance 

 The Local Government and Public 
Involvement in Health Act 2007 – 
provisions relating to creation of byelaws 

 
 The Local Government Act 2000 and the 

Localism Act 2011 – provisions creating a 
general power of competence to local 
authorities (in replacement of the general 
well-being powers in Local Government Act 
2000) 

 The Government’s Alcohol Strategy 2012 – a 
government paper outlining proposals for 
dealing with alcohol licensing 

 Live Music Act 2012 – provisions relating to 
licensing of the performance of live music 
entertainment 

 Equality Act 2010 – places a legal obligation 
on public authorities to have due regard to 
the need to eliminate unlawful 
discrimination, harassment and victimisation; 
to advance equality of opportunity and to 
foster good relations between persons with 
different characteristics, e.g. disability, race 
and religion. 

 Children Act 2004 – places a statutory 
obligation to ensure robust mechanisms are 
in place for safeguarding arrangements. 

1.17 The Council is committed to the 
implementation and application of this policy 
in such a manner as to ensure that no 
applicant or other person is treated less 
favourably on the grounds of sex, marital 
status, race, nationality, ethnic or national 
origin, colour, disability or age, nor is 
disadvantaged by the application of a rule, 
condition or requirement, which has a 
discriminatory effect which cannot be 
justified either in licensing terms or as a 
requirement of law. 

1.18 The Licensing Authority will also seek to 
discharge its responsibilities identified by 
other Government and local strategies, so far 
as they impact on the objectives of the 
Licensing Act.  Some examples of these 
strategies and policies are: 

 Action Plan for Tackling Alcohol Related 
Crime, Disorder and Nuisance 

 Safer clubbing 

 Trading Standards Code of Best Practice on 
Test Purchasing 

 Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy for 
England 

 Government/ Local Crime and Disorder 
Reduction Partnership Initiatives 

Page 34



South Holland District Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only) 

7 

 

 

 
 Children and Young People Plan 

 Policies from Lincolnshire DAAT 

 Enforcement Concordat/ Regulators 
Compliance Code 

1.19 It should however be made clear that licensing 
law is not the primary mechanism for the 
general control of nuisance and anti-social 
behaviour by individuals once they are away 
from the licensed premises and, therefore, 
beyond the direct control of the individual, club 
or business holding the licence, certificate or 
authorisation concerned.  Nonetheless, it is a 
key aspect of such control and licensing law 
will always be part of a holistic approach to 
the management of the evening and night-time 
economy in the district.  The Licensing 
Authority will also consider the role of other 
statutory legislation. 

 

2.0  Integrated Strategies and the  
 Avoidance of Duplication 

2.1 It is the Council’s mission ‘to develop safer, 
stronger, healthier and more independent 
communities whilst protecting the most 
vulnerable’ and ‘to encourage the local 
economy to be vibrant with continued 
growth’.  

2.2 By consulting widely prior to this policy 
statement being published the Council has 
endeavored to secure proper integration 
with local crime prevention, planning, 
transport, tourism and cultural strategies. 

2.3 There are a number of wider issues which 
may need to be given due consideration 
when dealing with applications.  The 
Council’s Licensing Committee may 
therefore receive, and may act upon, 
relevant reports concerning crime and 
disorder and any other reports considered 
appropriate to the licensing function. 

2.4 The Licensing Authority recognises that 
licensing applications should not be seen as 
a re-run of the planning application process 
and that there should be a clear separation 
of the planning and licensing regimes to 
avoid duplication and inefficiency.  However, 
this will not rule out valid representations 
made by the local planning authority as a 
responsible authority. 

 
2.5 Applicants are strongly encouraged to 

consider making any necessary applications 
and enquiries for planning permission before, 
or at the same time, as they make an 
application for a premises licence or club 
premises certificate. 

2.6 All applications relating to premises licences or 
club premises certificates will only be considered 
where the statutory qualifying conditions are 
met. 

2.7 In reaching a decision of whether or not to 
grant a licence, certificate or provisional 
statement, the Licensing Authority may take 
account of relevant representations from 
responsible authorities or other persons and of 
any non-compliance with other statutory 
requirements brought to its attention in a 
relevant representation, which may 
demonstrate that the premises are unsuitable 
for the activities proposed or that the 
management of the premises is not adequate 
to prevent risks to the licensing objectives. 

2.8 In order to avoid duplication with existing 
legislation and other statutory regimes, the 
Licensing Authority will, as far as possible, not 
attach conditions of licence unless they are 
considered appropriate for the promotion of 
the licensing objectives.  Conditions will 
generally be considered unnecessary if they 
are already adequately covered by other 
legislation. 

 

3.0  The Licensing Process 

3.1 The powers of the Licensing Authority under the 
Act may be carried out by the Licensing 
Committee, by a Sub-Committee (Licensing 
Panel) or by one or more officers acting under 
delegated authority in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act.  Delegated powers shall 
be in accordance with the table at Appendix 1. 

3.2 Each licence application will be considered on 
its own merits, for example, free from the 
imposition of quotas on the number of licensed 
premises or generalised closing times.  
Applicants are strongly encouraged to liaise 
with all Responsible Authorities, with respect to 
their Operating Schedule prior to submitting 
their application. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 Page 35



South Holland District Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only) 

8 

 

 

 
3.3 Applicants will be required to submit with their 

application for a premises licence or club 
premises certificate, or a variation to an 
existing premises licence or club premises 
certificate, an Operating Schedule detailing: 

 the licensable activities to be conducted 
on the premises 

 the times during which it is proposed that 
the relevant licensable activities are to take 
place 

 any other times when the premises are to 
be open to the public or to members of a 
club 

 if the licence is required only for a limited 
period, that period 

 where the licensable activities include the 
supply of alcohol, the name and address 
of the individual to be specified as the 
designated premises supervisor and his or 
her personal licence number 

 where the licensable activities include the 
supply of alcohol, whether the alcohol will 
be supplied for consumption on or off the 
premises or both 

 the steps which the applicant proposes to 
take to promote the licensing objectives, 
and 

 all relevant documentation necessary to 
satisfy the four licensing objectives. 

3.4 Applications will be determined having regard 
to: 

 this Policy 

 the Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) and 
subordinate legislation 

 guidance issued by the Secretary of 
State ( the Guidance) 

 any relevant representations received 
(providing they are not determined to be 
frivolous or vexatious as defined in the Act 
and associated guidance). 

3.5 Whilst representations regarding previous 
history may be valid, appropriate weight will 
be given to the length of time elapsed 
between the events referred to and the 
application date. 

 
3.6 If an application for a new or a variation to a 

premises licence, or club premises certificate 
or an application for a provisional statement 
has been made lawfully and there have been 
no representations from responsible 
authorities or other persons, the licensing 
authority will grant the application subject only 
to conditions that are consistent with the 
operating schedule and relevant mandatory 
conditions. 

3.7 Applications for minor variations may be 
subject to consultations with the appropriate 
responsible authorities and will be refused if 
any responsible authority indicates that they 
would make a relevant representation. 

3.8 In an effort to avoid unnecessary hearings, 
applicants are strongly advised to prepare risk 
assessments and from these formulate any 
steps they consider necessary to promote the 
licensing objectives and then to consult with the 
responsible authorities as defined within the Act 
before submitting their applications.  Failure to 
do so may lead to representations which can 
only be determined by the Licensing Panel.  In 
respect of minor variations applicants are 
strongly advised to contact the appropriate 
responsible authorities before formally 
submitting their application in order to avoid 
unnecessary expense. 

3.9 Applicants for any authority or permission are 
expected to make their application in 
accordance with the Act and any regulations 
made under it.  Failure to meet this 
requirement may result in the application 
being returned. 

3.10 Other than electronic applications, applicants 
are reminded that documents submitted as 
part of an application which bear a signature, 
criminal record certificates, criminal conviction 
certificates, subject access documents and 
licensing qualifications, must be original 
documents.  Faxes and photocopies are not 
acceptable unless with prior agreement of the 
Licensing Authority. 

3.11 If relevant representations have been made, 
applications will be determined having 
regard to: 

 This Policy 

 The Licensing Act 2003 and subordinate 
legislation 

 Guidance issued by the Secretary of State 

 The content of any ‘relevant representations’ 
received 

Page 36



South Holland District Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only) 

9 

 

 

  

3.12 Account will be taken of the need to 
encourage and promote all types of 
entertainment including live music, dancing 
and theatre for the wider cultural benefit of the 
community as a whole.  If representations are 
made concerning the potential for limited 
disturbance arising out of these activities in a 
particular neighbourhood, the Licensing 
Authority’s consideration will be balanced 
against the wider benefits to the community.  
In its capacity as Licensing Authority, it will 
encourage the licensing of public open spaces 
for the greater cultural good of the 
community, including the purposes of circus 
entertainment and street performers. 

3.13 Temporary Events Notices (TENS) 

The Licensing Authority encourages any 
applicant applying for a Temporary Event 
Notice to obtain the permission of the 
person(s) in control of premises to ensure they 
do not unknowingly exceed limits imposed by 
the Act on the numbers of temporary events 
that can be notified. 

3.14 Organisers of Temporary Events are required to 
give Notice to the Licensing Authority no later 
than 10 clear working days before the day on 
which the event period begins.  The 10 day 
period does not include the day the Temporary 
Event Notice was received by the Licensing 
Authority, the day of the event itself, Saturdays 
and Sundays or Bank Holidays.  A late 
Temporary Event Notice can be given between 
nine and five working days before the event.  
Please note there are arrangements for 
electronic submissions.  Guidance can be found 
on the website. 

3.15 Organisers are encouraged to submit their 
notifications to the Licensing Authority, Police 
and Environmental Health as soon as is 
reasonably practical in order for the Police and 
Environmental Health to consider whether or 
not there are any concerns and where there are 
concerns, to enable all parties to take the 
necessary steps to resolve them.  Where 
insufficient notice is given (for a standard or late 
TEN), the notice WILL NOT be authorised and 
the event will be illegal.  Provision of licensable 
activities except in accordance with the 
Licensing Act is an offence. 

3.16 For events that may attract larger numbers of 
people or may have an impact on traffic or road 
management, earlier contact with responsible 
authorities, the Highway Authority (and possibly 
the Lincolnshire Event Safety Advisory Group) 
is advisable. 

3.17 It is strongly recommended that advice on fire 
safety be sought from Lincolnshire Fire and 
Rescue. 

3.18 Event organisers are reminded of powers to 
close down events without notice, on the 
grounds of disorder, the likelihood of disorder, or 
public nuisance.  The Licensing Authority 
therefore expects organisers to be aware of their 
responsibilities under the licensing laws. 

3.19 Large Scale Events of more than 500 People 

 Organisers of major festivals and carnivals 
should approach the Licensing Authority at the 
earliest opportunity to discuss arrangements for 
the licensing of those activities falling under the 
2003 Act. 

3.20 In respect of some events, the organisers may 
seek a single premises licence to cover a wide 
range of activities at varied locations within the 
premises.  Anyone wishing to hold such an 
event should notify the Licensing Authority no 
less than six months before the event is due to 
happen. 

This will allow time for the preparation of a 
substantial operating schedule, about which the 
Licensing Authority will offer advice and 
assistance.  If necessary, the Licensing 
Authority will act as a co-ordinating body for 
preliminary input from the responsible authorities 
prior to formal notification about the event. 

The Licensing Authority would advise applicants 
to consult with those Authorities concerned with 
public safety and, in appropriate cases, be 
required to formulate a safety plan with 
Lincolnshire Event Safety Advisory Group 
(LESAG).  LESAG is not a responsible authority 
but is made up from representatives from bodies 
concerned with public safety; some of which are 
responsible authorities. 

Applicants are advised that the planning and 
consultation with LESAG should commence at 
an early stage on particularly large events, 
promoters/organisers should commence 
consultation at least a year in advance 
of the event. 

Page 37



South Holland District Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only) 

1
 

 

 

 
3.21 It is also advisable for applicants to read the 

guidance for large scale events called 
HSG195, The Event Safety Guide (for health, 
safety and welfare at music and similar events) 
known as the purple guide. 

3.22 Personal Licences 

 Applicants for a Personal Licence are 
expected to make their application in 
accordance with the Act and any regulations 
made under it.  Failure to meet this 
requirement may result in the application 
being returned. 

3.23 Where an application for a personal licence 
reveals a disclosable conviction for a relevant 
offence under the Act, the Licensing Authority 
recommends that the Police carry out full and 
proper enquiries (including interviewing 
applicants as necessary) so as to provide 
evidence as to the reasons the crime 
prevention objective will be undermined by 
the grant of the licence before exercising its 
discretion to make an objection 

 

4.0 Licensing Hours 

4.1 The Licensing Authority recognises that fixed 
and artificially early closing times in certain 
areas can lead to peaks of disorder and 
disturbance on the streets when large numbers 
of people leave licensed premises at the same 
time.  Longer licensing hours regarding the sale 
of alcohol may therefore be considered as an 
important factor in reducing friction at late 
night food outlets, taxi ranks and other sources 
of transport. 

4.2 As far as the Licensing Authority’s overall 
approach to licensing hours is concerned it is 
not intended that any form of zoning will be 
introduced.  Experience in other areas shows 
that this can lead to the significant movement of 
people across boundaries in search of premises 
opening later, which puts greater pressure on 
town centres than is necessary and can lead to 
increased disorder. 

 
4.3 Shops, stores and supermarkets should generally 

be permitted to sell alcohol for consumption off 
the premises during the normal hours they intend 
to open for shopping purposes.  However, in the 
case of individual shops that are known to be, or 
are in an area which is known to be a focus of 
disorder and disturbance then, subject to 
receiving valid, relevant representations, a 
limitation on licensing hours may be appropriate.  
However, each application will be considered on 
its own merits. 

4.4 The Licensing Authority will deal with the issue of 
licensing hours on the individual merits of each 
application.  When issuing a licence or certificate, 
stricter conditions with regard to noise control 
and/or limitations to opening hours may be 
imposed in the case of premises which are 
situated in largely residential or sensitive areas 
when representations have been received. 

4.5 The Licensing Authority recommends applicants 
applying for extended hours to cater for non-
specified dates, such as international sporting 
events, to make provision on their operating 
schedules to address the licensing objectives for 
these specific times applied for.  For example a 
different set of operating conditions may apply 
during these extended hours. 

 

5.0 Licensing Objectives 

5.1 Each of the four licensing objectives is of equal 
importance.  The Licensing Authority considers 
the effective and responsible management of 
the premises and the instruction, training and 
supervision of staff in the adoption of best 
practice to be amongst the most essential 
control measures for the achievement of the 
licensing objectives.  For this reason it is 
recommended these elements be specifically 
considered and addressed within an 
applicant’s operating schedule.  The 
Community Safety Partnership Codes of 
Practice for the South Lincolnshire Night Time 
Economy may be of some assistance in 
ensuring that premises are well managed and 
run. 

5.2 The Licensing Authority recommends that 
applicants carry out their own risk assessments in 
relation to the four licensing objectives in order 
to assist them in deciding whether any steps are 
required to be taken in order to meet those 
objectives. 

 
 

 
  

Page 38



South Holland District Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only) 

11 

 

 

 
5.3 Although not a requirement under the 

legislation, applicants are advised to copy 
any risk assessments undertaken to the 
responsible authorities in order that they 
can assess the suitability of the operating 
schedule.  This may assist in reducing the 
number of representations and 
subsequent hearings. 

5.4 Prevention of Crime and Disorder 

The Licensing Authority will carry out its 
licensing functions with a view to promoting 
the prevention of crime and disorder and will 
seek to ensure that licence holders take 
measures to control the behaviour of persons 
whilst on their premises, or in the immediate 
surrounds of the premises. 

5.5 The Licensing Authority will expect 
applicants to include in their operating 
schedules, the steps they propose to take to 
detect, reduce, and deter crime and disorder. 

These steps will vary from premises to 
premises and according to the type of 
licensable activities that are to be carried on.  
Door supervision will be one of the control 
measures that can be considered by 
applicants, who will need to consider the 
location and type of their premises when 
considering this option.  For example, there 
may be a greater need to provide door 
supervision in town centre public houses 
than at village premises. 

Applicants should seek advice from the Police 
on control measures under this licensing 
objective.  It is recommended that applicants 
discuss the measures they intend to take with 
the Police prior to making the application to 
try and reduce representations. 

 Examples of measures the Licensing 
Authority may expect applicants to 
consider and address in their operating 
schedule include: 

 Participation in a scheme to reduce crime 
and disorder e.g. membership of 
Pubwatch 

 Physical security features e.g. use of 
polycarbonate, toughened or plastic 
drinking glasses 

 Procedure for risk assessment of alcohol 
promotions to ensure that they do not 
promote irresponsible drinking or 
potentially breach the mandatory 
condition on irresponsible drinks 
promotions 

 
 The use and numbers of SIA licensed door 

supervisors 

 Amount of seating to be provided to reduce 
the risk of high volume vertical drinking 

 Training given to staff in crime prevention 
and drug awareness measures 

 Training given to staff to prevent the sale of 
alcohol to those who are under age or 
appearing to be drunk 

 Adoption of the Challenge 21 or Challenge 
25 policy 

 Measures agreed with the Police to reduce 
crime and disorder 

 Measures to prevent the use or supply of 
illegal drugs, including the installation and 
use of drug safes 

 Search Procedures 

 Provision of CCTV in and around the 
premises 

 Formulation of a dispersal policy 

 Measures to prevent glasses and bottles 
being taken away from the licensed 
premises 

5.6 Public Safety 

 The Licensing Authority will carry out its 
licensing functions with a view to 
promoting public safety and will seek to 
ensure that licence holders take measures 
to protect the safety of both performers 
and persons attending licensable activities.  
The risk to public safety will vary according 
to the type of premises and the activities 
carried out. 

5.7 The Licensing Authority will expect 
applicants to include in their operating 
schedules the steps they propose to take to 
promote public safety. 

5.8 Where an applicant identifies an issue in 
regard to public safety which is not covered 
by existing legislation, the applicant should 
identify in their operating schedule the 
steps which will be taken to ensure public 
safety.  Depending on the individual style 
and characteristics of the premises and/or 
events the following issues might be of 
relevance: 

 suggested occupancy figures (including 
staff and performers) 

 the use of equipment and effects 

Page 39



South Holland District Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only) 

12 

 

 

 
 levels of door supervision 

 measures to prevent the supply and use 
of illegal drugs 

 physical security features e.g. the use of 
toughened drinking glasses or plastic 
containers 

 safety training and emergency evacuation 
procedures 

 controls on the removal of glasses, bottles 
and other drinking containers from 
licensed premises where alcohol is 
consumed 

 control measures in place, such as the 
provision of seating and tables, to reduce 
high volume vertical drinking 

 provision of CCTV 

5.9 The occupancy capacity for premises, and 
events as appropriate, is a fundamental factor 
in the achievement of the four licensing 
objectives (except in respect of premises 
licensed for the consumption of food and/or 
alcohol off the premises).  The Licensing 
Authority recommends the issue of 
occupancy capacity (including staff and 
performers) to be considered and addressed 
within the premises’ fire assessment. 

5.10 The design and layout of premises are 
important in determining capacity, as is the 
availability and size of exits within 
recommended travel distances.  Other 
factors should also be considered when 
assessing the appropriate capacity for 
premises or events.  These include but are 
not limited to: 

 The nature of the premises or event 

 The nature of the licensable activities 
being provided 

 The provision or removal of such items as 
temporary structures, such as a stage, or 
furniture 

 The number of staff available to supervise 
customers both ordinarily and in the event 
of an emergency 

 The customer profile 

 Availability of suitable and sufficient 
sanitary accommodation 

 Nature and provision of facilities for 
ventilation 

 
5.11 The agreement to a capacity for premises or 

events should not be interpreted as a 
requirement in all cases to also provide 
permanent monitoring arrangements such as 
door staff, attendance clickers or maintenance 
of attendance records. 

The Licensing Authority recognises that the 
person in charge at the premises can often 
readily assess the capacity of the premises 
without resort to such measures. 

However, where the capacity is likely to be 
reached (such as on known busy evenings) 
and particularly where a special event or 
promotion is planned, the applicant is advised 
to detail the additional arrangements that will 
be put in place to ensure the capacity of the 
premises is not exceeded. 

5.12 Prevention of Public Nuisance 

Licensed premises have a significant potential 
to impact adversely upon communities 
through public nuisance arising as a result of 
their activities.  The Licensing Authority’s aim 
is to maintain and protect the amenity of 
residents and other businesses from the 
potential impact of licensed premises by 
promoting the need to prevent public 
nuisance, whilst at the same time recognising 
the valuable cultural, social and economic 
importance of such premises. 

5.13 The Licensing Authority intends to interpret 
‘public nuisance’ in its widest sense and takes 
it to include such issues as noise, light, odour, 
litter and anti-social behaviour, where these 
matters impact on those living, working or 
otherwise engaged in normal activity in the area 
affected. 

5.14 The Licensing Authority will expect applicants 
to include in their operating schedules, the 
steps they propose to take to prevent public 
nuisance.  These steps will vary from premises 
to premises and according to the type of 
licensable activities that are to be carried on. 

5.15 When addressing public nuisance the applicant 
should initially identify any particular issues 
(having regard to their particular type of 
premises and/or activities) which are likely to 
adversely affect the promotion of the objective 
to prevent public nuisance.  Such steps as are 
required to deal with these identified issues 
should be included within the applicants 
operating schedule. 

 

 
  Page 40



South Holland District Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only) 

13 

 

 

 
5.16 These issues may include: 

 The customer profile 

 Availability of suitable and sufficient 
sanitary accommodation 

 The location of the premises and the 
proximity to residential and other noise 
sensitive premises 

 The hours of opening, particularly where 
this will include times between 23.00 hours 
and 07.00 hours 

 The nature of the activities to be provided, 
including whether those activities are of a 
temporary or permanent nature and 
whether they are to be carried on inside or 
outside the premises; whilst consumption 
of alcohol is not a licensable activity, the 
Licensing Authority will expect 
consumption areas to be shown on the 
application and a description of the 
measures to be taken to prevent public 
nuisance 

 The design and layout of the premises and 
in particular the presence of noise limiting 
and/or monitoring features 

 The occupancy capacity of the premises 

 Any ‘wind-down period’ between the end 
of licensable activities and the closure of 
the premises 

 Last admission times 

 The availability of public transport 

 The availability of parking and access to 
such parking 

5.17 The following examples of control measures 
are given to assist applicants who may need 
to take account of them in their operating 
schedule, depending upon the particular 
type of premises and the activities to be 
carried on: 

 Effective and responsible management 
of the premises 

 Appropriate instruction, training and 
supervision of those employed or 
engaged, to prevent incidents of public 
nuisance e.g. to ensure that customers 
leave quietly 

 Control of operating hours for all or part 
of the premises (e.g. garden areas), 
including restrictions on the time of 
deliveries where necessary to control 
public nuisance 

 
 Adoption of best practice guidance (e.g. 

Good Practice Guide on the Control of 
Noise from Pubs and Clubs, produced 
by the Institute of Acoustics) 

 Installation of soundproofing, air 
conditioning, acoustic lobbies and 
sound limiting devices 

 Management of people, including staff and 
customers entering and leaving the 
premises 

 The effective management of vehicular 
traffic entering and leaving the site, 
including vehicle horns, loud music from 
vehicle radios etc 

 Liaison with public transport providers 

 Care in the citing of external lighting 
including security lighting 

 Management arrangements for the 
collection and proper disposal of litter 
resulting from premises, including that 
generated by customers 

 Effective ventilation systems to prevent 
nuisance from odour emissions 

 Undertaking noise impact assessments 

 Regular monitoring of the perimeter by staff 
to ensure that noise emanating from the 
premises is not likely to cause public 
nuisance 

 Provision of CCTV 

 The need for temporary traffic 
regulation orders 

 Signage requiring customers to leave 
the premises in a quiet and orderly 
manner. 

5.18 The Protection of Children from Harm 

The Licensing Authority recognises the great 
variety of premises for which licences may 
be sought.  These include theatres, cinemas, 
restaurants, pubs, nightclubs, cafes, 
takeaways, community halls or centres and 
schools.  Except where prohibited by law, 
access by children to all types of premises 
will not be limited in any way unless it is 
considered necessary to do so to protect 
them from harm. 

The Licensing Authority must also consider 
the need to protect children from sexual 
exploitation when undertaking licensing 
functions. 

 
 Page 41



South Holland District Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only) 

14 

 

 

 
5.19 When deciding whether to limit access to 

children or not, the Licensing Authority will 
judge each application on its own individual 
merits. 

5.20 After receiving relevant representations on 
limiting access to children, the Licensing 
Authority, when deciding whether to limit 
access to children or not, will judge each 
application on its own individual merits.  
Examples, which may give rise to concern 
in respect of children and would likely lead 
to a refusal of permitting access to children 
under 18, would include premises: 

 where entertainment or services of an 
adult or sexual nature are provided 

 where there has been a conviction of a 
member of the current staff at the 
premises for serving alcohol to minors or 
with a reputation for underage drinking 

 with a known association (having 
been provided with evidence) with 
drug taking or dealing 

 where there is a strong element of 
gambling on the premises (but not, for 
example, the simple presence of a small 
number of cash prize gaming machines) 

 where the supply of alcohol for 
consumption on the premises is the 
exclusive or primary purpose of the 
services provided at the premises 

5.21 The Act makes it an offence for children 
under 16, who are not accompanied by an 
adult, to be present on premises being used 
exclusively or primarily for the supply of 
alcohol for consumption on those premises 
under the terms of a premises licence, club 
premises certificate, or where that activity is 
carried on in accordance with a temporary 
event notice.  In addition, it is an offence to 
permit the presence of children under 16 
who are not accompanied by an adult 
between midnight and 5am at other 
premises supplying alcohol for consumption 
on premises holding a premises licence, club 
premises certificate or temporary event 
notice.  The Licensing Authority will not 
knowingly support applications which would 
permit these offences to occur and may 
impose conditions in specific cases to 
ensure the protection of children from harm. 

 
5.22 As well as being a criminal offence, the sale of 

alcohol to children and young persons can 
lead to harm to them and can lead to public 
nuisance and crime and disorder.  The 
Licensing Authority will therefore expect there 
to be adequate controls in place at licensed 
premises to prevent the sale of alcohol to 
children and young persons, except where 
such sales are permitted in law. 

5.23 The Licensing Authority recognises that 
Lincolnshire County Council Trading Standards 
Service, as part of its responsibilities and duties 
under legislation controlling the sale of age 
restricted products including alcohol, provides 
advice and guidance to the licensed trade on 
the controls and systems that may be adopted 
to help prevent such sales.  The Licensing 
Authority also recognises that in liaison with 
the Police, the Trading Standards Service 
conducts covert test purchasing exercises in 
response to complaints and information 
received to check compliance with the law. 

5.24 In the case of premises which are used for film 
exhibitions, conditions will be imposed 
restricting access only to those who meet the 
required age limit in line with any certificate 
granted by the British Board of Film 
Classification or, in specific cases, a certificate 
given to the film by the Licensing Authority 
itself. 

5.25 Where a large number of children are likely to 
be present on any licensed premises, for 
example, a children’s show or pantomime, then 
subject to receiving relevant representation, 
conditions may be imposed requiring the 
presence of an appropriate number of adult 
staff to ensure public safety and their protection 
from harm. 

5.26 The onus will be on the premises licence 
holder to ensure that staff members are 
suitable to carry out the supervision of children, 
which may include a criminal record disclosure 
from the Disclosure & Barring Service. 

 

 

 

Page 42



South Holland District Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only) 

15 

 

 

 
5.27 It is recommended that licence holders 

ensure that systems are in place to ensure 
proof of age where necessary to prevent 
children and young persons being served 
alcohol, or as applicable licensed premises 
under certain circumstances as required by 
law, or through their own policy.  It is 
suggested that the following means should 
be considered for assessing proof of age: 

 passport 

 photo-card driving licence issued by an 
EU country 

 an accredited proof of age scheme 
identity card bearing the PASS (Proof of 
Age Standards Scheme) Logo 

 an official ID card issued by HM Forces 
or other EU Country Forces  

5.28 The options available for limiting access by 
children would include: 

 limitations on the hours when children 
may be present 

 limitations on the exclusion of the 
presence of children under certain ages 
when particular specified activities are 
taking place and to ensure such activities 
cannot be viewed by children 

 limitations on the parts of premises to 
which children might be given access 

 age limitations (below 18) 

 requirements for accompanying adults 
(including for example, a combination of 
requirements which provide that children 
under a particular age must be 
accompanied by an adult) 

 full exclusion of those people under 18 
from the premises when any licensable 
activities are taking place 

5.29 The Licensing Authority will not impose any 
condition that specifically requires access 
for children to be provided at any premises.  
Where no restriction or limitation is imposed 
the issue of access will remain a matter for 
the discretion of the individual licensee or 
club. 

 
5.30 Where licence holders wish to employ children 

they should ensure that the legislation 
regarding this matter is complied with and any 
necessary permits to work have been 
obtained.  Further information on the 
requirements of this legislation is available 
from the Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children 
Board. 

5.31 In respect of premises licensed for the sale of 
alcohol, the Licensing Authority commends 
the Portman Group Code of Practice on the 
Naming, Packaging and Promotion of 
Alcoholic Drinks and compliance with the 
Retail Alert Bulletin. 

5.32 The sale of alcohol to children and young 
persons under the relevant age is a criminal 
offence, often resulting in harm to the children 
and young persons concerned and disturbance 
and nuisance to local residents and businesses.  
Applicants should detail adequate control 
measures in their operating schedule to 
prevent under-age sales. 

5.33 The Licensing Authority recognises that 
Lincolnshire County Council Trading Standards 
Service, as part of its responsibilities and duties 
under the legislation controlling the sale of age 
restricted products, including alcohol, provides 
advice and guidance on the controls and 
systems that may be adopted to help prevent 
such sales.  The Licensing Authority also 
recognises that in liaison with the Police, the 
Trading Standards Service conducts covert test 
purchasing exercises in response to complaints 
and information received to check compliance 
with the law. 

5.34 Mandatory conditions require the adoption of a 
proof of age scheme.  The Licensing Authority 
commends a scheme such as the British Retail 
Consortium’s Proof of Age Standards Scheme 
(PASS), the “Challenge 21” scheme, 
“Challenge 25” scheme or any locally or 
nationally approved scheme.  All staff engaged 
in the sale or supply of alcohol should be fully 
trained in the application of the policy adopted. 

5.35 The body responsible for the interests of 
children is The Lincolnshire Safeguarding 
Children’s Board which can be contacted 
through Lincolnshire County Council. 

 

 
 

 

  
 Page 43



South Holland District Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only) 

16 

 

 

 
5.36 If an applicant intends to provide any 

entertainment of an adult nature then 
the Licensing Authority will expect a 
detailed description of those activities 
and the measures the applicant intends 
to take to protect children from harm.  
Please see section 7 on Sexual 
Entertainment Venues. 

5.37 For the avoidance of doubt, the lists of 
examples given of measures applicants 
may take to promote the licensing 
objectives are not mandatory and will not 
be applied in all cases.  These examples 
are given to assist applicants in deciding 
the measures they may take. 

 

6.0 Cumulative Impact 

6.1 The cumulative impact of licensed premises 
on the promotion of the licensing objectives 
is a matter which the Licensing Authority can 
take into account.  This should not, however, 
be confused with ‘need’ which relates more 
to the commercial demand for a particular 
type of premises, for example a pub, 
restaurant or hotel.  The issue of ‘need’ is 
therefore a matter for planning consideration 
or for the market to decide and does not 
form part of this licensing policy statement. 

6.2 The Licensing Authority may receive 
representations from either a responsible 
authority or other person that the 
cumulative impact of new licences is leading 
to an area becoming saturated with 
premises of a certain type, making it a focal 
point for large groups of people to gather, 
and thereby creating exceptional problems 
of disorder and nuisance over and above the 
impact from the individual premises 
themselves.  In such cases the issue of 
cumulative impact can be taken into 
account when considering the individual 
merits of any application. 

 
6.3 The Licensing Authority will not operate a 

quota of any kind which would pre-determine 
any application, nor will it seek to impose 
general limitations on trading hours in 
particular areas.  Instead, regard will be given 
to the individual characteristics of the premises 
concerned within a given area.  It is 
recognised that pubs, nightclubs, restaurants, 
hotels, theatres, and other clubs all sell 
alcohol, serve food and provide entertainment 
but with contrasting styles and characteristics. 
Proper regard will be had to those differences 
and the impact they are likely to have on the 
local community. 

6.4 The decision to include a special policy relating 
to cumulative impact, within this policy, will be 
evidentially based.  The steps that will be 
followed in considering whether to include such 
a special policy are: 

 identification of concern about crime and 
disorder or public nuisance 

 consideration of whether it can be 
demonstrated that crime and disorder and 
nuisance are arising and are caused by 
customers of licensed premises, and if so 
identifying the area from which problems are 
arising and the boundaries of that area; or 
that the risk factors are such that the area is 
reaching a point where cumulative impact is 
imminent 

 consultation with those specified by section 
5(3) of the 2003 Act as part of the general 
consultation required in respect of the whole 
statement of licensing policy 

 subject to that consultation, inclusion of a 
special policy about future premises licence 
or club premises certificate applications 
from that area within the terms of the 
Guidance issued by the S e c r e t a r y  o f  
S t a t e  under section 182 of the Act within 
this policy 

 publication of the special policy as part of 
this policy. 

 

Page 44



South Holland District Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only) 

17 

 

 

 
6.5 There are a number of other mechanisms 

for addressing issues of unruly behavior 
which occurs away from licensed 
premises. 

These include: 

 planning controls 

 positive measures to create a safe and 
clean town centre environment in 
partnership with local businesses, 
transport operators and other 
departments of the local authority 

 the provision of CCTV surveillance in 
town centres, ample taxi ranks, provision 
of public conveniences open late at 
night, street cleaning and litter patrols 

 police enforcement of the general law 
concerning disorder and anti-social 
behavior, including the issuing of fixed 
penalty notices 

 the prosecution of any personal licence 
holder or member of staff at such 
premises who is selling alcohol to 
people who are drunk 

 closure powers for licensed premises or 
temporary events  

 the power of responsible authorities or 
local residents or businesses to seek a 
review of the licence or certificate in 
question. 

 powers for the Council to designate parts 
of the local authority area as places 
where alcohol may not be consumed 
publicly 

 Directions to leave under section 27 of 
the Violent Crime Reduction Act 2006 

6.6 The Licensing Authority may address a 
number of these issues through the Crime 
Reduction Partnership and County Licensing 
Group in line with the strategic objectives for 
crime and disorder reduction within the 
District. 

 
 7.0 Sexual Entertainment Venues 

7.1 In relation to regulated entertainment of a 
sexual nature, the Council has resolved to 
adopt schedule 3 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 as 
amended by the Police and Crime Act 2009 
regarding sexual entertainment venues.  The 
Council’s own Sexual Entertainment Venue 
Policy will apply. 

 

 8.0 Conditions of Licence 

8.1 The Licensing Authority does not propose to 
implement standard conditions on licences.  It 
may attach conditions as appropriate given the 
circumstances of each individual case. 

8.2 Where the responsible authorities and other 
persons do not raise any representatives 
about an application made to the Licensing 
Authority, it is the duty of the Licensing 
Authority to grant the licence or certificate 
subject only to conditions that are consistent 
with the operating schedule or club operating 
schedule and any mandatory conditions 
prescribed in the 2003 Act itself. 

8.3 When considering conditions, the Licensing 
Authority will look to the relevant responsible 
authorities to assist and advise on the 
appropriate measures to be taken. 

8.4 Where an applicant considers that the 
representations may be likely or probable, it is 
recommended that the applicant discuss the 
proposal with the Licensing Authority and 
those from whom they think representations 
are likely to be made prior to submitting their 
application. 

8.5 The Licensing Authority is aware of the need 
to avoid measures which deter live music, 
dancing and theatre by imposing indirect 
costs of a substantial nature and will take 
account of this when imposing conditions. 

 

 9.0 Advice and Guidance 

9.1  For further guidance and advice on the 
application process, please contact the 
Licensing team at: 

South Holland District Council, 
Priory Road,  
Spalding,  
Lincolnshire  PE11 2XE 

 
 
 
 

 
 Page 45



South Holland District Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only) 

18 

 

 

 
 10.0 Enforcement 

10.1 The Licensing Authority wi l l  enforce 
a longs ide other enforcing authorities by 
targeting agreed problem and high-risk 
premises, whilst providing a lighter touch in 
respect of low risk premises which are well 
run. 

10.2 An Enforcement Protocol has been 
established by the Licensing Authority in 
order to facilitate co-operation and co-
ordination between enforcement agencies in 
pursuance of the Licensing Act 2003.  The 
protocol will underpin the mutual operational 
support required to tackle licensing issues 
and seek to detail the role of each agency in 
promoting the licensing objectives. 

10.3 In general, action will only be taken in 
accordance with the Council’s own 
enforcement policy, which reflects the 
agreed principles which are consistent with 
the Enforcement Concordat.  To this end, 
the key principles of targeting, 
consistency, transparency and 
proportionality will be maintained. 

 

 11.0 Review 

11.1  The Policy Statement will remain in existence 
for a maximum period of five years and will be 
subject to review and further consultation 
before any new policy comes into force; 
however the Policy will be subject to 
continuous review, although the Council will 
only make revisions following appropriate 
consultation. 

 

 12.0 Consultation 

12.1 Consultation has been carried out 
with the following: 
 the police 
 the fire service 
 representatives of licence holders 
 local businesses and their representatives 
 local residents and their representatives 

as required by the Licensing Act 
2003, as well as: 

 Other bodies including other South 
Holland District Council Departments 
and Elected Members, Lincolnshire 
County Council, Town & Parish 
Councils.  

 
When this policy is reviewed after 5 years as 
required by the Act, or at any other time, 
consultation will be carried out in a similar 
manner. 

Page 46



Page 47



South Holland District Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only) 

20 

 

 

 
Appendix 1 

 
Delegation of Functions 

 
The delegations of  funct ions in relat ion to  Licensing  matters  are  as 
follows: 

 
 

Matter to be dealt with Licensing 
Committee 

Sub Committee / 
Licensing   Panel 

 
Officers 

Application for personal licence  If a police objection If no objection is made 

Application for personal licence 
with unspent convictions  All cases  

Application for premises licence / 
club premises certificate  If a relevant representation is made If no relevant representation is made 

Application for provisional 
statement  If a relevant representation is made If no relevant representation is made 

Application to vary premises 
licence / club premises certificate  If a relevant representation is made If no relevant representation is made 

Application to vary designated 
premises supervisor  If a police objection All other cases 

Request to be removed as 
designated premises supervisor   All cases 

Application for transfer 
of premises licence  If a police objection All other cases 

Application for interim authorities  If a police objection All other cases 

Application to review premises 
licence / club premises certificate  All cases  

Decision on whether a complaint is 
irrelevant frivolous vexatious etc   All cases 

Decision to object when local 
authority is a consultee and not the 
relevant authority considering the 
application 

 All cases  

Determination of an objection to a 
temporary event notice  All cases  

Application for a minor variation 
including which responsible 
authorities to consult 

 
 

 All cases 

Determination of application to vary 
premises licence at community 
premises to include alternative 
licence condition 

 If a Police objection All other cases 

Page 48



South Holland District Council Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only) 

21 

 

 

 
 

21 

 
 

22 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

South Holland District Council 
Council Offices 
Priory Road 
Spalding 

Lincolnshire 
PE11  2XE 

 
tel 01775 761161 
fax 01775 711054 

 
email:  licensing@sholland.gov.uk 

www.sholland.gov.uk 
 
 
 

 

Page 49

mailto:licensing@sholland.gov.uk
http://www.sholland.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



ASSOCIATION OF CONVENIENCE 
STORES

Federation House 17 Farnborough Street Farnborough GU14 8AG

ASSOCIATION OF LICENSED 
MULTIPLE RETAILERS

9 Central Chambers Ealing W5 2NR

BRITISH BEER & PUB 
ASSOCIATION

Brewers' Hall Aldermanbury Square London EC2V 7HR

BRITISH BOARD OF FILM 
CLASSIFICATION

3 Soho Square London W1D 3HD

BRITISH HOSPITALITY 
ASSOCIATION

Queens House 55-56 Lincoln's Inn Fields London WC2A 3BH

BRITISH INSTITUTE OF INN 
KEEPING

Infor House 1 Lakeside Road Farnborough GU14 6XP

BRITISH RETAIL CONSORTIUM 21 Dartmouth Street Westminster London SW1H 9BP
CAMPAIGN FOR REAL ALE 230 Hatfield Road St Albans AL1 4LW
CIRCUS ARTS FORUM LTD 13 Longfield Close North Waltham Basingstoke RG25 2EL
CITIZENS ADVICE BUREAU - 
HOLBEACH

Holbeach Youth Centre Boston Road South Holbeach PE12 7LR

CITIZENS ADVICE BUREAU - 
LONG SUTTON

The Market House Market Street Long Sutton PE12 9BN

CITIZENS ADVICE BUREAU - 
SPALDING

Council Offices Priory Road Spalding PE11 2XE

CITIZENS ADVICE BUREAU - 
SUTTON BRIDGE

The Curlew Centre Memorial Park, Bridge 
Road

Sutton Bridge PE12 9SA

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION South Holland District Council Priory Road Spalding PE11 2XE
EQUITY Guild House Upper St Martins Lane London WC2H 9EG
FEDERATION OF LICENSED 
VICTUALLERS ASSOCIATIONS

The Raylor Centre James Street York YO10 3DW

FOOD AND HEALTH & SAFETY 
TEAM

Council Offices Priory Road Spalding PE11 2XE

HEALTH AND SAFETY 
EXECUTIVE

City Gate West Toll House Hill Nottingham NG1 5AT

LINCOLNSHIRE CHAMBER OF 
COMMERCE

Commerce House Outer Circle Road Lincoln LN2 4HY

LINCOLNSHIRE FIRE AND 
RESCUE

Grantham Fire Station Harlaxton Road Grantham NG31 7JG

LINCOLNSHIRE POLICE 
HEADQUARTERS

Licensing (Alcohol) Po Box 999 Lincoln LN5 7PH

LINCOLNSHIRE SAFEGUARDING 
CHILDREN BOARD

Block B, Orchard House Orchard Street Lincoln LN1 1BA

MUSICIANS UNION 1a Fentiman Road London SW8 1LD

P
age 51



PLANNING DEPARTMENT Council Offices Priory Road Spalding PE11 2XE
PUBLIC HEALTH DIRECTORATE Lincolnshire County Council Room 12, 15-17 The 

Avenue
Lincoln LN1 1PD

THE PORTMAN GROUP 4th Floor 20 Conduit Street London W1S 2XW
TRADING STANDARDS - 
SAFEGUARDING COMMUNITIES

Lincolnshire County Council Myle Cross Centre, 
Macaulay Drive

Lincoln LN2 4EL

UK CINEMA ASSOCIATION LTD 3 Soho Square London W1D 3HD
WINE AND SPIRIT TRADE 
ASSOCIATION

39-45 Bermondsey Street London SE1 3XF

P
age 52


	Agenda
	3. Minutes
	4. Revised Statement of Licensing Policy (Licensing Act 2003)
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Contents
	South Holland District Council - Licensing Policy Statement (Licensing Act 2003 only) Replaces  Policy
	Policy Aim
	The aim of this policy is to make sure that all parties involved in the licensing of activities covered by the Licensing Act 2003 understand the policy of the Council in relation to the four licensing objectives stated in the Act, namely:
	3.13 Temporary Events Notices (TENS)
	3.19 Large Scale Events of more than 500 People
	5.6 Public Safety


	12.1 Consultation has been carried out with the following:
	Appendix 1
	South Holland District Council Council Offices


	Appendix C




